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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

I am pleased to present the annual report of Kingdom Holdings
Limited (“Kingdom” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the
“Year”).

During the Year, the Group’s pure linen yarn exports amounted to
11,734 tonnes (2016: 8,618 tonnes), representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 36.2%. The growth has topped the overall
pure linen yarn export market in China of 9.8% during the Year.
Kingdom accounted for approximately 45.0% of the total pure linen
yarn export from China in 2017 (2016: 36.3%), which continued the
Group's leading position as the largest pure linen yarn exporter in
China for 15 consecutive years.

The Group continued to consolidate its leading position in the linen
yarn industry by organising and participating in various linen related
forums, symposia and exhibitions in Korea, Italy, Portugul, France,
and China during the Year. The trend of environment-friendliness and
the use of natural fibers has been set. Linen yarn as one of the most
environmentally friendly fibers, will surely benefit from this trend and
we are confident in the demand for linen yarn in the coming years.

Kingdom had authorised the formation of a joint venture in
Heilongjiang Province in 2016, in which the Group has a 72.72%
equity interest. The joint venture company has built a new industrial
hemp and linen yarn factory with annual production capacity of
4,000 tons of yarn in Heilongjiang Province, and commenced trial
production during the Year. It is also the Group’s maiden attempt to
explore the industrial hemp yarn market.
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The Group is also committed to investing in Ethiopia for new
production facilities and has acquired a parcel of land with a site area
of 300,000 square meters located in Adama Industrial Park, Adama,
Ethiopia. The Ethiopia project is expected to generate savings on
land lease, labour, energy and tax and there are possibly exemptions
of quota and custom duty for exports of linen yarn manufactured
in Ethiopia to a vast number of countries in the world. Despite
there have been on and off ethno-political conflicts since October
2016 leading to the resignation of the Prime Minister of Ethiopia
in February 2018, the Government to Ethiopia had reaffirmed their
commitment in maintaining the already initiated industrialization
agenda. We believe the strategic investment in Ethiopia will have
significant long-term benefits to the Group. We will proceed with our
plan cautiously and the Ethiopia production facility is expected to
commence trial production in 2019.

Despite the short term decline in profitability, the Board is confident
in the future of the Group’s operation and profitability. To show the
Group's appreciation to its shareholders for their trust and support
while reserving resources for future expansion, the board of directors
(the “Board”) of the Company has recommended the payment of a
final dividend for the Year of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share (2016:
HK5.0 cents per ordinary share).

On behalf of the Board, 1 would like to thank the entire staff for
their devotion and contributions in the past year. | would also like to
express my sincere gratitude to the shareholders and business partners
for their continuous support for the Group.

Ren Weiming
Chairman
Haiyan County, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, 23 March 2018
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Five Year Financial Summary

IFEMBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published

audited financial statements, is set out below.

REVENUE A
Cost of sales HEMRAK
Gross profit £7
Other income and gains Hiv s R iss
Selling and distribution costs HERD A
Administrative expenses THRAX
Other expenses Hth s
Finance costs BB
Share of profits and losses of FEfE— B E R A&l
an associate RER
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBLAT (B598) R
Income tax credit/(expense) FiEhiEe/ (A%)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR Frian
Attributable to: FE1h -
Owners of the parent SYNTETSIN
Non-controlling interests FEPERI MR

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS EEARE
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEAH
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FREMES
NET ASSETS BEFE
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Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Bt -—ZT-RFE —T-1F -—T-MFE -—T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT AREFTT ARETT ARETR
1,023,962 856,243 1,025,403 914,279 761,915
(907,694) (704,365) (761,358) (669,278) (555,032)
116,268 151,878 264,045 245,001 206,883
25,575 54,358 12,274 14,309 32,056
(39,361) (37,951) (38,687) (37,870) (32,617)
(49,670) (58,968) (55,628) (48,168) (41,042)
(38,200) (643) (4,432) (12,931) (14,587)
(17,712) (16,059) (13,236) (10,751) (9,551)

- - (28) 36 99

(3,100) 92,615 164,308 149,626 141,241
3,722 (22,586) (43,939) (39,149) (40,803)

622 70,029 120,369 110,477 100,438

(3,132) 66,344 120,369 110,477 100,438
3,754 3,685 - - -

EEREE
As at 31 December
R+=A=1+-H

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E—tf 5% CZZ-1fF CZT-QmF =ZT-=%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRH
1,962,416 1,930,435 1,599,847 1,490,055 1,314,794
(912,220) (843,999) (555,869) (528,393) (424,819)
(32,439) (18,685) - - _
1,017,757 1,067,751 1,043,978 961,662 889,975



Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

According to the National Bureau of Statistics of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”), the GDP growth rate in
China for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Year”) was 6.9%,
topped the government target of around 6.5%. The overall textile
industry in China recorded a growth of 4.5% in export during the
Year. The cotton price was relatively stable throughout 2017 which
was good for the recovery of the market demand of linen yarn.

According to the statistics of the General Administration of Customs
of the PRC, the total value of all yarn-and-textile-product exports
grew by approximately 4.5% in 2017 as compared with 2016. The
total volume of pure linen yarn exports of China in 2017 grew by
approximately 9.8% year-on-year, while the total volume of all textile
with linen (including pure linen and linen mixed with other fabrics)
of China in 2017, on the other hand, dropped by approximately 5.9%
year-on-year. In the trough of the economic cycle, the low level of
cotton yarn price may lead to a reduction in demand for pure linen
yarn from fashion brands and garment manufacturers, which favours
cotton or cotton/linen blended yarn and enables products made of
these materials to be more appealing to relatively cost conscious
consumers. The market has proven that pure linen yarn is a preferred
choice over linen mixed yarn once the price is not the only concern.
For years, the Group has been focusing on upholding excellent
quality and offering tailored customer services. As such, the Group
has always been a key partner of major overseas linen fabric and
garment manufacturers.

During the Year, the Group’s pure linen yarn exports amounted to
11,734 tonnes (2016: 8,618 tonnes), representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 36.2%. The growth was far greater than
the 9.8% growth of the overall pure linen yarn export market during
the Year. The Group accounted for approximately 45.0% of the total
pure linen yarn export from China in 2017 (2016: 36.3%), signifying
the Group’s continuous leading position as the largest pure linen yarn
exporter in China for 15 consecutive years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DN

As a result of global market impact and the Group's strategic price
adjustment, with the significant increase in volume sold, as a result,
revenue of the Group for the Year increased by approximately 19.6%
year-on-year to RMB1,023,962,000 (2016: RMB856,243,000).
Gross profit dropped by approximately 23.4% year-on-year to
RMB116,268,000 (2016: RMB151,878,000) and overall gross margin
dropped to 11.4% in 2017 (2016: 17.7%), as a result of the strategic
price reduction. Profit for the year was RMB622,000, representing a
decrease of approximately 99% as compared from RMB70,029,000
in 2016. Basic loss per share amounted to RMB0.01 (2016:
earnings per share of RMBO0.11). Despite the short term decline in
profitability, the Board is confident in the Group’s future operation
and profitability in the long run. To reciprocate the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) for their continuous support for
the Group while reserving resources for further expansions, the Board
has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK2.0 cents per
ordinary share for the Year (2016: HK5.0 cents per ordinary share).

Major Markets and Customers

Being the largest linen yarn exporter in China, the Group has a
sales network covering over 20 countries and regions around the
world. In order to timely seize market opportunity, keep abreast
of market trends and deliver comprehensive and efficient services,
the Group has established presence in major overseas linen textile
and consumer markets. The Group currently has one subsidiary
in Italy and five agents in Turkey, Portugal, India and Korea. The
Group's subsidiary in Italy keeps its own stocks so that it can serve
the immediate needs and tighten its co-operations with high-end
customers in Europe. In 2017, revenue derived from overseas sales
amounted to RMB636,827,000, representing approximately 62.2%
of the Group’s total revenue. In particular, revenue from European
Union countries amounted to approximately RMB251,705,000,
representing approximately 24.6% of the Group's total revenue,
while revenue from non-European Union countries amounted to
approximately RMB385,122,000, representing approximately 37.6%
of the Group’s total revenue. During the Year, India has overtaken
Italy as the largest export market of the Group and accounted for
approximately 30.3% of the Group’s total export revenue, followed
by, in descending order, ltaly, Korea, Turkey, Lithuania and Portugal.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Domestic sales in China increased by approximately 17.4% during
the Year to RMB387,135,000, representing approximately 37.8% of
the Group's total revenue. In light of the increasing income level,
there have been fundamental changes in the consumption patterns of
the general public in China. Consumers’ concerns have shifted from
pure practicality to quality and the ability to reflect their personal
taste. Linen textiles are not only anti-bacterial and comfortable,
but also highly environment-friendly in their production process.
Therefore, linen textiles perfectly suit the taste of new-generation
consumers who may have stronger preference over environment-
friendly and sustainable products. Many leading domestic and
overseas trend-setting brands and fast-moving fashion brands have
now embarked on their own linen selections. For example, a famous
Japanese brand has not only launched a linen garment line, but also
introduced a tracking system for the use of its raw materials to allow
its product quality and environment-friendliness to be monitored by
itself together with its consumers.

Sales Analysis by Domestic and Overseas Markets

FY2017
ZE-tEHREE

AREFT %

China H 387,135 37.8%

European Union X B2 251,705 24.6%

Non-European Union FEERBR 385,122 37.6%

Total Revenue g A 1,023,962 100.0%

BEEENWR DN
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BRI TEHEED T
Year-on- Year-on-
year change  year change
FY2016 in revenue in revenue
KA A
—E-REHBEE RE2E RESS
AREFL %  ARETT %
329,853 38.5% 57,282 17.4%
251,724 29.4% (19) 0.0%
274,666 32.1% 110,456 40.2%
856,243 100.0% 167,719 19.6%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DN

Raw Material Procurement and Related Strategies

During the Year, prices of fibre flax, the major raw material of linen
yarn, maintained a steady growth. The Group mainly sources its fibre
flax from well-established origins such as France, Belgium and the
Netherlands. Being one of the largest buyers in these regions, the
Group enjoys strong bargaining power when dealing with suppliers.
Furthermore, the Group has formulated systematic procurement
strategies under which the Group will procure raw materials
according to the level of fibre flax harvest, the Group’s inventory level
and the market prices of fibre flax so as to stabilise its raw material
costs and overall market demand and supply as well as reducing the
price fluctuations of raw materials. Apart from sourcing raw materials
abroad, the Group has established a raw material production base
in Yili, Xinjiang, the PRC mainly for the production of organic flax.
This production base currently has an annual production capacity of
approximately 400 tonnes. Going forward, the Group will continue
to look for other suitable flax cultivation bases in other regions with
the aim to further stabilise the price fluctuations and supply of raw
materials.

Production Bases and Productivity

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had four production bases in
China. The one in Rugao City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC has an
annual production capacity of 6,000 tonnes. Another two production
bases are located in Haiyan County, Zhejiang Province, the PRC,
among which the first Haiyan plant has an annual production
capacity of 7,000 tonnes and the second Haiyan plant has an annual
production capacity of 5,000 tonnes. The Group has established
its fourth facility in Heilongjiang Province in China with an annual
capacity of 4,000 tonnes for flax and hemp yarn. Currently, the
designed annual linen and hemp yarn production capacity of the
Group amounts to 22,000 tonnes based on standardized 24Nm
specification. The utilization rate of each of the first three production
bases was close to 100% during the Year and the production base in
Heilongjiang was in trial production during the Year and expected
to operate in close to full capacity from second quarter of 2018
onwards.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The production bases are under continuous improvement. New
production bases are equipped with the latest management systems,
technologies and equipment, a combination of which has resulted
in a smooth operation and reduced unnecessary procedures
and wastage of raw materials, which has improved our overall
production efficiency. These systems have not only made the
production processes more environment-friendly, but also reduced
the production costs of the Group and have laid a solid foundation of
profit growth for the Group in the long run. For further details of the
measures taken by the Group in relation to environmental protection,
please refer to the separate Environmental, Social and Governance
Report of the Group for the Year, which is expected to be despatched
together with the annual report of the Company for the Year before
the end of April 2018.

In 2016, the Board had authorised the construction of a flax
and industrial hemp yarn manufacturing facility with an annual
production capacity of 4,000 tonnes (based on 24Nm specification)
in Heilongjiang Province, the PRC. The Group owns a 72.72% equity
interest in this new venture and it is the Group’s maiden attempt to
explore the industrial hemp yarn market, as the Company believes
industrial hemp yarn market will grow rapidly in the next few
years due to the national policy in China to promote the planting
of industrial hemp in the Heilongjiang region and the use of the
industrial hemp textile products. The new factory in Heilongjiang
Province in the PRC is on trial production and is expected to operate
close to full capacity from second quarter of 2018 onwards.

BEEENWR DN

FEEMTERETET - NEEEMLE SN
HEIE R LR RE EERE R T BEDN
TRERMBERE SARAERBEERKR B
LERRTEFLEETFEMRRK ERETAE
BHAEERS RASBENRKE HETHEFNEE
REER FREASERRNRFREBOE —F
FE FLHATNENAFEARERE HE
RERBE (BRER T \FOAREMERN
RARFREFR—HrFE)

REZE—RF EE5SRERATHBEILEZE
— BRI i K T3 R4 A 728 3% 8 + 4F 22 34,0008
(AN THREED) - AEEBEEZTEELTN
72.72%ME WIBIRE AR EBEET T EKNMY
MZHMEEEE  AReAE SERARRESHE
B T Mo T 3 K AR & T 5 K 45 4 o B AR &9
BIR  TEXNMATHEERRRBFEZRIZR A
BEETIENTHELEERE BHER=-Z—AN
FE_ETERBEOMBEEE-

Kingdom Holdings Limited $Z = RAR Q7

13



14

Management Discussion and Analysis
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In addition, the Group is also committed to investing in Ethiopia for
new production facilities and has acquired a parcel of land with a
site area of 300,000 square meters located in Adama Industrial Park,
Adama, Ethiopia. The phase one development of this land parcel will
further boost the annual production capacity of the Group by 5,000
tonnes. The Board believes that the federal government of Ethiopia
is keen to develop the Kingdom Linen Yarn Factories project to be
constructed on this land parcel into one of the model projects of
the “Belt & Road” initiative in Ethiopia. The Chinese government
also encouraged manufacturers to expand overseas by facilitating
political risk insurance coverage by state-owned insurance company.
The Ethiopia project is expected to generate savings on land lease,
labour, energy and tax and there are possibly exemptions of quota
and custom duty for exports of linen yarn manufactured in Ethiopia
to a vast number of countries in the world. Despite there have been
on and off ethno-political conflicts since October 2016 leading to
the resignation of the Prime Minister of Ethiopia in February 2018,
the Government to Ethiopia had reaffirmed their commitment in
maintaining the already initiated industrialization agenda. The Board
believes the strategic investment in Ethiopia will have significant
long-term benefit to the Group. Therefore, the Group will proceed
with its plan cautiously and the Ethiopia production facility is
expected to commence trial production in 2019.

On 25 January 2018, the Group entered into a master agreement
with The IT Electronics Eleventh Design & Research Institute Scientific
and Technological Engineering Corporation Limited* ({5 BE¥%E
FE+—RAARERFETIZRHBR QA for the engineering,
procurement and construction/turnkey contract for the Ethiopia
project at an aggregate contract price of RMB208,670,000.

2017 Annual Report —ZE—t+F &3]

PN REBE RN EER L DR EEZTE
ERN WERRERL DMEIHMMEISTE
B Y15 — i@ th B& T F& £ 300,000°F 7 K8y 3 - +
MHFE—BEREEBSAEENTERE T
12 =5,00018 - EE 2 RERL D ABBT
BmEeEDMY THRER (BR&IE L &
ENEE)ERAA &K ERERLTH
REIEE Z— - PRBF L EEE &R A B
HEBCARRRE SRR EEHRGINTS - B
REMILGIERAERE LIS L8 8RN
MENER Y fEELT2HRERALRERL
DAEEMDMY O RERERERRE -EE
BT R"F+ABBERERKEUAER &
BIRERNTERBN -_E—N\E- AR EE
ERL RN EERESBHERERENITE
LR -BEEERAERNERERL TNEBKRE S
GAAEEERERBNATENZ Al XEEE
EEEEE BHRERILLDEELBHR =
- NFARHE-

R-E—N\F—A-+HH AEBHREZEEES
FE+ R AR TR ER AR E
W NABRERILTEEMN IR KB XE
T/ —B{E4 AHrERAR208,670,000
5t



Existing and planned production bases
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No. Factory Location Country

wY HE L CIES

1 Haiyan Tst Factory Zhejiang China
BE—HRE AL HE

2 Rugao Factory Jiangsu China
A L& i

3 Haiyan 2nd Factory Zhejiang China
B~ HmE AN FE

4 Qinggang Factory Heilongjiang China

FHBE REEL i
5 Adama Factory Adama Ethiopia
fi & 5 32 55 REM L

Patents, Awards and Recognition

The Group has continued to invest in technology and innovation. As
at 31 December 2017, the Group owned 56 registered patents and
there were another 23 patents applications pending formal approval
by relevant authorities. Further, the brand “KINGDOM” has been
awarded “Top 10 Most Influential Brand” by the China Bast and Leaf
Fibers Textile Association during the Year. In addition, the Group has
been awarded “Quality Assured Zhejiang Product” awarded by the
Department of Commerce, Zhejiang Province in China.

RERCHRELEEEM
Annual
capacity
(Tonnes) Utilisation/Status
FER
(W) FAR/RR
7,000 Close to 100%
B3100%
6,000 Close to 100%
Bi100%
5,000 Close to 100%
B100%

4,000 Currently in trial production and
full operation in 2nd quarter
2018
AR EARETN 22— /\F
F_EFREARALE
5,000 Expects trial production in 2nd
quarter 2019
BR-Z-NEFE_FEMRHE

EF - RIER KRS

REBEERENFMAF RT—tF+=
A=+—H AEE#HE-6HAMER  BH2318
BRI AE A HEBEEEREL - N RAFE
EA - [KINGDOM | T EFR B4 1T e
B [T RRAEFENRE] - REE I EF
T ERMSERE N TE2REER] K-
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the Year, the Group’s revenue increased by approximately 19.6%
to approximately RMB1,023,962,000 (2016: RMB856,243,000).
The increase of revenue was mainly attributable to the growth in
quantity of linen yarn sold. As a result of global market impact and
the Group’s strategic price adjustment, an effort to boost demand for
its products and further increase its market share in the linen yarn
market. Revenue for domestic market and non-European countries
recorded a year-on-year growth of approximately 17.4% and 40.2%
respectively, while European countries remained at similar level to
previous year.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the Year, the Group's gross profit decreased to RMB116,268,000,
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 23.4% (2016:
RMB151,878,000). Gross profit margin for the Year decreased to
11.4% (2016: 17.7%) as a result of global market impact and the
Group's strategic price adjustment.

Other Income and Gains

For the Year, other income and gains are mainly represented by
various government grants which amounted to RMB24,135,000
(2016: RMB30,372,000) and interest income of RMB899,000 (2016:
RMB2,260,000). The drop in other income and gains during the Year
was mainly due to there were net exchange gain of RMB14,072,000
and fair value gain on financial derivative instruments of
RMB5,788,000 in 2016. The net exchange loss and loss on financial
derivative instruments during the Year were recorded in Other
Expenses.
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Selling and Distribution Expenses

For the Year, the Group's selling and distribution expenses amounted
to approximately RMB39,361,000 (2016: RMB37,951,000), which
accounted for approximately 3.8% (2016: 4.4%) of the Group's
revenue. The decrease in the selling and distribution expenses as a
percentage of revenue in the Year was mainly due to lower sales agent
commission expense paid during the Year.

Administrative Expenses

For the Year, the Group’s administrative expenses amounted
to approximately RMB49,670,000 (2016: RMB58,968,000),
representing an decrease of approximately 15.8% as compared to
the year ended 31 December 2016. The decrease of administrative
expenses was mainly due to the decreases in consulting fee of
RMB1,827,000, research and development costs of RMB1,428,000,
office expense of RMB2,333,000, depreciation of RMB1,045,000 and
miscellaneous taxes of RMB1,908,000.

Other Expenses

Other expenses of the Group for the Year mainly represent net
exchange loss of RMB28,894,000 (2016: gain of RMB14,072,000),
loss on financial derivative instruments of RMB7,002,000 (2016: gain
of RMB5,788,000), donations and other miscellaneous expenses.

Finance Costs

For the Year, finance costs amounted to approximately
RMB17,712,000 (2016: RMB16,059,000), representing an increase of
approximately 10.3%. The increase in finance costs was mainly due
to an increase in average outstanding loan balance during the Year.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expense for the Year was a credit of approximately
RMB3,722,000 (2016: income tax expense of approximately
RMB22,586,000). It was mainly due to the reversal of provision of
dividend withholding tax provided in 2013. It was accrued at 10%
but actual charged by tax authorities was 5%. According to PRC tax
laws, the time limit of recovery of tax by tax authorities is three years.
The effective tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
24.4%.
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Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded a net profit for
the Year of approximately RMB622,000 (2016: approximately
RMB70,029,000), representing a decrease of approximately 99% as
compared to the year ended 31 December 2016.

Minority interests

The minority interests amounted to RMB3,754,000 represent
the share of the net profit of the 27.28% of equity interests of
Heilongjiang Jinda Flax and Hemp Co., Ltd. (2B I & EMEBR A
&), attributable to the minority shareholders during the Year (2016:
RMB3,685,000).

Loss Attributable to Owners of the Parent

During the Year, the Group recorded a loss attributable to owners of
the parent of approximately RMB3,132,000, as compared to a profit
attributable to owners of the parents of RMB66,344,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Other Intangible Assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s intangible assets were mainly
Certified emission rights in 2012 for a term of 20 years, which
amounted to RMB5,834,000 (2016: RMB8,137,000). Intangible assets
are subject to amortisation based on their useful lives. The Group
resold Certified emission rights amounting to RMB1,767,000 to the
government during the year. For the Year, amortisation of intangible
assets was approximately RMB536,000 (2016: RMB573,000).

Inventories

As at 31 December 2017, inventories of the Group increased by
approximately 4.2% to RMB531,212,000 (2016: RMB509,591,000),
the average inventory turnover days decreased from 220 days as at
31 December 2016 to 209 days as at 31 December 2017. The lower
inventory turnover days was mainly attributable to the increase of
sales of linen yarn during the Year and the decrease in finished goods
inventory balance as a result of global market impact and the Group's
strategic price adjustment.

2017 Annual Report —ZE—t+F &3]

FREF
HER EXAr s REERAFEHBAFMHAR
#622,0007T (= ZF — 7~ F : 49 A R %70,029,000
L) BEEE—AF+_A=1+—HLFER
DH999% o

PERRER

BEARYES, 754,000t 2 VBB R ERIERFE
DERREEBETISEMESRRDF27.28%K
HEFTIREER (Z = —"F : AR¥3,685,0007T) °

BARBEEAEMLER

REFE FAEENSRRAHEABGEBENA
AR¥3,132,000 MBE_T— X"+ A
—t+t—HULEFESRAREE ARG ENAEARE
66,344,0007T °

HttE\EEE
R-ZT—+F+-_A=Z+—H AEENEFEE
FEAN T ——FEIUAE20F R FEE -
A ANREES834,0000T (ZT—RF: AR
8,137,0007T) - ML B EIZE Al {F B F 2% 8 - &
SERFRRABNEESE A ARE,767,0007T
B HE R o EA$¢TE CEREEBRENAAR
#536,0007T (= Z — 754 : AR¥S573,0007T) ©

rE

R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—H AEENFEIE
hn#14.2%% AR #531,212,0005T ( —F — X &F
AR#509,591,000T) ' FEFHRE AR
E—ARE+-A=Z+—HH220BRIE_ZT—+
F+-A=+—HH2098 - AN Z 2 IHMA
SEXBUFAEFE FERAEHERBIETER
MR FERNEMYNEESEMNEEKRTFEL %
B FT



Management Discussion and Analysis

Trade and Notes Receivables

As at 31 December 2017, trade and notes receivables of the Group
increased by approximately 4.1% to RMB310,215,000 (2016:
RMB297,964,000), the average accounts receivable turnover days
decreased from 129 days as at 31 December 2016 to 108 days as at
31 December 2017.

Trade and Notes Payables

As at 31 December 2017, trade and notes payables of the
Group increased by approximately 46.6% to approximately
RMB189,783,000 (2016: RMB129,489,000). There were additional
purchases of raw materials at the end of the Year to ensure stable
supply. The average accounts payable turnover days increased to 64
days during the Year (2016: 59 days).

Interest-bearing Bank Loans

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s interest-bearing bank
loans amounted to approximately RMB595,161,000 (2016:
RMB631,903,000), representing a decrease of approximately 5.8%.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has net current assets of
approximately RMB307,836,000 (2016: RMB484,729,000). The
Group financed its operations with internally generated resources and
bank loans during the Year. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had
cash and cash equivalents of approximately RMB173,824,000 (2016:
RMB279,511,000).

The liquidity ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2017 was
approximately 137.2% (2016: 166.7%). Shareholders’ fund
of the Group as at 31 December 2017 was approximately
RMB1,017,757,000 (2016: RMB1,067,751,000).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had bank loans repayable
within 12 months from the statement of financial position date
of approximately RMB519,561,000 (2016: RMB531,103,000)
and long-term loans of approximately RMB75,600,000 (2016:
RMB100,800,000). Together they represented a gross debt gearing
(i.e. total borrowings/total equity) of approximately 56.7% (2016:
58.2%).
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2017, outstanding contractual capital
commitments of the Group in respect of purchase of property,
plant and equipment not provided for in the annual financial
statements amounted to approximately RMB36,283,000 (2016:
RMB77,930,000).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals during
the Year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any contingent

liabilities (2016: Nil).

CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the current interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a carrying amount of RMB334,221,000 were
secured by certain property, plant and equipment, prepaid
land lease payments, and inventories with carrying amounts of
RMB112,775,000 (2016: RMB207,598,000), RMB27,421,000 (2016:
RMB31,685,000) and RMB40,000,000 (2016: RMB40,000,000),
respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, the non-current interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a carrying amount of RMB75,600,000 were
secured by certain property, plant and equipment, prepaid
land lease payments, of the Group with carrying amounts of
RMB78,961,000 (2016: RMB57,070,000) and RMB15,422,000
(2016: RMB15,742,000), respectively.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group's transactions are mainly denominated in RMB, United
States Dollars, Euro and Hong Kong Dollars. The exchange rate
changes of such currencies were monitored regularly and managed
appropriately. Currently, the Company also has certain foreign
currency forward contracts and cross-currencies swap contracts
entered into by utilising its credit line, and derivative financial
instruments of approximately RMB7,002,000 was recognised by the
Group as a current liability as at 31 December 2017 (2016: current
asset of RMB5,788,000).
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REMUNERATION POLICY AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 2,706 employees
(2016: 2,502 employees). Total staff costs incurred for the Year
increased by approximately 3.3% to RMB167,984,000 (2016:
RMB162,560,000). The additional headcount was mainly attributable
to the workforce recruited for the new Heilongjiang factory during the
Year.

The Group offers comprehensive and competitive remuneration,
retirement scheme and benefit packages to its employees. The
Group is required to make contributions (retirement insurance and
unemployment insurance) to a social security scheme in China.

The remuneration policy for the employees of the Group is
formulated by the Board with reference to the employee’s respective
qualification, experience, responsibilities and contributions to the
Group, as well as the prevailing market rate of remuneration for a
similar position. The remunerations of the Directors are determined
by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company
with the mandate given by the Shareholders at the annual general
meeting having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics. The Group also
provides both internal and external training programmes for its
employees from time to time.

The Group has also adopted share option schemes and a share award
plan for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to the
Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, and other
employees of the Group who have contributed to the success of the
Group's operations.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING THE
GROUP

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing of linen yarn
and the sale of the products to over 20 countries. Overseas sales
are invoiced in United States Dollars, except sales by our subsidiary
in Italy which are invoiced in Euro. Domestic sales in China are
invoiced in Renminbi. Raw materials (fiber flax) are imported from
Europe. The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include
the demand for linen yarn, protectionism of certain countries and
possible punitive tariffs of products made in China, stable supplies
of raw materials, continuous decline in cotton price, depreciation of
United States Dollars against Renminbi, and the execution risk of the
new expansion project in Ethiopia.

OUTLOOK AND PLANS

The cotton price in China was relatively stable throughout the Year,
and is expected to be resilient on current price level. Stable or high
cotton price is beneficial to the demand of linen yarn as the price gap
will be further narrowed. The trend of environment-friendliness and
the use of natural fibers has been set. Linen yarn as one of the most
environmentally-friendly fibers, will surely benefit from this trend and
we are confident in the demand for linen yarn in the coming years.

The cyclical nature of linen yarn has driven the growth of the steady
demand since the fourth quarter of 2017, and in view of no massive
production capacity launched in the linen yarn market since 2016,
while some of the smaller and less efficient competitors exited the
market, we are expecting a fairly robust linen yarn market and
possible price increases for linen yarn in 2018 and in 2019.

Protectionism is expected on the rise. Department of Commerce,
Government of India has initiated anti-dumping investigation
concerning imports of “flax yarn” originating in or exported from
China in February 2018. The period of investigation is from 1st
October 2016 to 30th September 2017. We will closely monitor the
progress and will evaluate possible impacts on our operation.

The new industrial hemp and linen yarn factory in Heilongjiang,
with an annual production capacity of 4,000 tonnes of yarn, will
contribute the capacity to fulfill the market demand. It is also the
Group’s maiden attempt to explore the industrial hemp yarn market.
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The Ethiopia project has a planned site area of approximately
300,000 square metres and will be constructed in phases. The first
phase will have a production capacity of 5,000 tonnes of regular
linen yarn and is expected to commence trial production in 2019.

Going forward, leveraging its headquarters in China, the Group will
continue to explore and penetrate the domestic market and promote
the use of linen fabrics so as to tap into the enormous market of
China with a population of 1.3 billion. With respect to the overseas
market, the Group will further strengthen its communications and
interactions with stakeholders of other linen textile production and
consumption regions through organizing exchanges and conferences,
and participating in product and technology exhibitions. Such
initiatives are expected to reinforce the Group’s relationship with
its clients, strengthen its brand image, further reinforce the Group's
leadership in the industry and secure mutual growth in both the
domestic and overseas markets.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREERE

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ren Weiming ({E#E83) , aged 58, is the chairman of the Group
and an executive Director. Mr. Ren is responsible for the overall
management of the Group and making decisions on the business
development strategy of the Group. Mr. Ren has worked in the silk
and textile industry since 1979. He has been the chairman and
general manager of Zhejiang Kingdom Creative Co., Ltd. (“Kingdom
Creative”), a company which is owned as to 67.12% by Mr. Ren
since 2000. Mr. Ren started to engage in the linen yarn manufacturing
business through Haiyan Ziwei Flax Co., Ltd. (“Haiyan Ziwei”) in
December 2001 as its director. He joined the Group in March 2003
when the first operating member of the Group, Zhejiang Jinyuan
Flax Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Jinyuan”) was established. Mr. Ren is
a director of all subsidiaries of the Group. He obtained various
awards including National Township Entrepreneur awarded by the
Ministry of Agriculture of the PRC, National Excellent Young Factory
Manager and Zhejiang Provincial Excellent Entrepreneur. He was
representative of the 9th and 10th National People’s Congress of
Zhejiang Province. Mr. Ren is currently the vice president of China
Bast and Leaf Fibers Textile Association and the vice-president of The
Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles Ltd. He is also a director
of Kingdom Investment Holdings Limited (“Kingdom Investment”)
with discloseable interests in the shares of the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Ren is also
a director of Bank of Jiaxing Co., Ltd and Huitong Financial Leasing
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd (“Huitong”).

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Shen Yueming (JLE2H3) , aged 56, is an executive Director.
Mr. Shen is a director of Zhejiang Jinyuan, Jiangsu Jinyuan Flax Co.,
Ltd. (“Jiangsu Jinyuan”) and Zhejiang Jinda Flax Co., Ltd (“Zhejiang
Jinda”), all are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Shen
is responsible for the day-to-day operations and management of the
Group and also takes part in the decision making of the Group. He is
also a director of Kingdom Creative and Huitong. Mr. Shen joined the
Group in March 2003.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Zhang Hongwen (587%532) , aged 51, is an executive Director.
Mr. Zhang is the director of Zhejiang Jinyuan, Jiangsu Jinyuan and
Zhejiang Jinda. He is also a director of Kingdom Creative, Huitong,
Zhejiang Yuyuan Photovoltaic Co., Ltd. and Mega East Investment
Limited. Before joining the Group in 2003, Mr. Zhang was the
assistant to the general manager and the head of capital clearing
division of Kingdom Creative from 2000 to 2002.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Shen Hong (J£3%), aged 51, is an executive Director. Ms.
Shen is the management controller of the Group. She completed
her professional accounting studies at Zhejiang Long March Finance
School in the People’s Republic of China in July 1994 and has more
than 20 years of experience in finance-related area. Ms. Shen is a
director of Kingdom Creative. Before joining the Group in March
2003, she worked in Kingdom Creative as the head of finance
management department.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert (Z2&48) , aged 68, is a non-executive
Director. Mr. Ngan is the chairman of Millionfull Company Limited,
a company incorporated in Hong Kong engaged in the trading of
linen and linen blend textiles. Mr. Ngan was a member of the 9th
and 10th Fujian Provincial People’s Political Consultative Conference
and vice-chairman of Po Leung Kuk from April 2010 to March
2012. He was the president of The Hong Kong General Chamber
of Textiles Ltd. from September 2009 to August 2011 and has been
appointed as the permanent honorary chairman of The Hong Kong
General Chamber of Textiles Ltd. in September 2011 and a director of
HuaQiao University in 2002. On 22 November 2011, he became a
member of the Election Committee of the Chief Executive Election of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. He joined the Group
in September 2004. He is also the chairman of the board of directors
of Millionfull International Co., Ltd which has discloseable interests in
the shares of the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO. He is also a director of Huitong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lau Ying Kit ( 2384) , aged 44, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Lau is currently an independent non-executive director
of Xiezhong International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3663),
China Wood Optimization (Holding) Limited (Stock Code: 1885)
and United Strength Power Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2337),
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lau
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and holds a master’s degree in finance from the City
University of Hong Kong. He has extensive experience in financial
and accounting in China and Hong Kong. He joined the Group in
November 2006.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson (Z&15) , aged 44, is an independent
non-executive Director. Mr. Lo has more than 10 years of working
experience in investment banking and advising on corporate finance.
Mr. Lo is currently a deputy general manager of Guotai Junan Capital
Limited. Mr. Lo is also an independent non-executive director of
Raymond Industrial Limited (Stock Code: 229), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo also has three years
of experience in the field of auditing and accounting. Mr. Lo is a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He obtained his bachelor’s degree in commerce from the University
of British Columbia in Canada in 1995. He joined the Group in May
2010.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yan Jianmiao (&3 ), aged 52, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director at the conclusion of the annual
general meeting on 30 May 2016. Mr. Yan is currently a professor
of Department of International Economics of Zhejiang University
(“ZJU"), a director of China Society of World Economics (CSWE),
an executive director of Zhejiang International Economics and Trade
Association, an academic counselor of Hangzhou WTO consulting
center and a researcher of the Center for Research of Private Economy
(CRPE) of ZJU. Prior to holding these positions, Mr. Yan served as a
deputy director in Department of International Trade of Hangzhou
University and a director of Department of International Economics of
ZJU. Mr. Yan was an independent director of Hundsun Technologies
Inc. (Stock Code: 600570), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, from March 2010 to October 2014. He is currently an
independent director of TC Medical Co. Ltd (Stock Code: 600763),
and Zhejiang Xinan Chemical Industrial Group Co. Ltd (Stock Code:
600596), both listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Yan
graduated from Hangzhou University in 1985 with a Bachelor of
Economics degree. He obtained a master degree in economics from
the Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences in 1988. Mr. Yan was a
senior visiting scholar of Le Havre Business School in France in 1997
and obtained a PhD in Economics from ZJU in 2005. He joined the
Group in May 2016.
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Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Yan Kwan Andy (BRIZ%F ), aged 49, is the chief financial
officer and company secretary of the Company. Mr. Chan has over
20 years of experience in accounting and the financial sector. From
July 2004 to January 2014, he was the group financial controller
and company secretary of Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited
(Stock Code: 157), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, responsible for financial planning and monitoring. Prior to
July 2004, he worked in an international accounting firm and served
senior financial positions in a company listed on the NASDAQ Stock
Market and a renowned German exhibition company. Mr. Chan
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a holder of Practitioner’s Endorsement certificate issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He graduated from the
University of Hull in the United Kingdom with a bachelor’s degree
in economics and accounting in 1992 and graduated from the lvey
Business School with Western University (formerly Richard Ivey
School of Business with University of Western Ontario), Canada with
an Executive MBA in 2008. Mr. Chan joined the Group in January
2014.
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Report of the Directors

EEERE

It is the Board’s pleasure in presenting their annual report on the
affairs of the Group together with the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 76.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in the sections
and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 4 to 5 and pages 9 to 23 respectively of
this annual report. Save as disclosed in the note 37 of the financial

headed “Chairman’s Statement”

statements on page 186, there have been no major events affecting
the Group that have occurred since the end of the Year. An indication
of likely future developments in the Group’s business can be found in
the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the Five Year Financial
Summary on page 8 and Financial Review sections from pages 16 to
20 respectively of this annual report.

The Group is committed to supporting the environmental
sustainability. In the pursuit of excellent operating results, the Group
also puts a lot of effort into sustainable development. For example,
the Group’s factories proactively adopt all kinds of environmental
protection and energy conservation equipment, such as re-modelling
of energy consuming equipment and installing production monitoring
systems, so as to maximise the reduction in energy consumption.

For details of the Group’s performance on environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) aspects including relationships with various
stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group, please refer to the Group's
separate ESG report for the Year.
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DIVIDEND

At a meeting of the Board held on 23 March 2018, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK2.0 cents per
ordinary share of the Company for the Year. The proposed final
dividend, if approved by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company, will be paid on or before 6 July
2018 to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 8 June 2018.

None of the shareholders has waived or agreed to waive any
dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 80.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s distributable
reserves calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands amounted to RMB619,024,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB641,168,000).

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to approximately RMB209,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB102,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Group are set out
in note 26 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 8.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
of approximately RMB189,395,000. Details of the movements are set
out in note 13 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

EEERE

DIRECTORS
During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the Directors

were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ren Weiming (Chairman)
Mr. Shen Yueming

Mr. Zhang Hongwen

Ms. Shen Hong

Non-executive Director
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lau Ying Kit

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson

Mr. Yan Jianmiao

Pursuant to article 87 of the Articles of Association (the “Articles”),
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is
not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general
meeting of the Company provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at least once every three years and be eligible for re-
election. In accordance with article 87 of the Articles, Ms. Shen
Hong, Mr. Yan Jianmiao and Mr. Lau Ying Kit shall retire from office
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All retiring
Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as
Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

As Mr. Lau Ying Kit had been serving as an independent non-
executive Director for nine years in November 2015, pursuant to
Code provision A.4.3 of Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of the
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), his further appointment should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders. Mr. Lau was re-elected as
an independent non-executive Director at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 18 May 2015 pursuant to the requirement of
code provision A.4.3 of the Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has any unexpired service contract with the
Group which is not terminable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director has a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any
time during the Year except as disclosed under the section headed
“Connected Transactions” below and note 33 to the financial
statements.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Director a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto; provided that such indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attach to any of said persons. The Company has arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers” liability insurance cover in respect
of legal action against the directors and officers of the Group.
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EEERE

REMUNERATION POLICY FIBOR

The Remuneration Committee considers and recommends to the ¥ MZEGERERNESFSEREARAINTE
Board the remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company HEEREREEENHFMEEMEN FHEEE
to the Directors and senior management. The remuneration of all TEHERMBEELAAEEEMNTH  UER
Directors and senior management is subject to regular monitoring ~ EEMFH M RBEKFEAEEE -

by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the levels of their

remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the EE=HMMAFBEEH R IEHRERMES -
financial statements.

The remunerations of the senior management of the Company, during ~ F A R AR SR ERENFH N T T FEE -
the Year fall within the following bands:

Number of senior

management

SREEB AR

2017

—E—+tF

RMBO — RMB1,500,000 AE%OTEE/\E%LSO0,000E 1
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND BEENEHREEENEBEFE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior managementare EE R @R EREEREFEHNFE26EEE298 ¢
set out on pages 26 to 29.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES” INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the Directors and their associates had the
following interests in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of the SFO, which were recorded or required to be recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules:

Long positions in shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
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Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

BREEIBTEER
Approximately
Total percentage of
Personal Corporate number of issued share
Name of Director EEpE interests interests Shares held capital (%)
(Note 1)
HERITRA
5PN £+ SHERZ FRROAE  BOEI %)
(Brat1)
Mr. Ren Weiming FEREE 12,072,000 290,244,000 302,316,000 48.01
(Note 2)
(Hit2)
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert BEERE 418,000 67,000,000 67,418,000 10.71
(Note 3)
(Hat3)
Ms. Shen Hong LB+ 454,000 - 454,000 0.07
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Notes:

1. The Shares are registered under the names of the Directors who are the
beneficial shareholders.

2. Mr. Ren Weiming holds approximately 76.38% of the issued share
capital of Kingdom Investment (BVI) (as defined below). Mr. Ren
therefore holds a controlling interest in Kingdom Investment (BVI)
and is deemed under the SFO to be interested in the Shares held by
Kingdom Investment (BVI).

3. Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert and Ms. Ngan Chan Kattie Sau Kat, the
spouse of Mr. Ngan, hold approximately 51.00% and 23.00% of the
issued share capital of Millionfull International (as defined below) and
52.36% and 24.14% of the issued share capital of Millionfull Company
Limited, respectively. Mr. Ngan therefore holds controlling interests in
both Millionfull International and Millionfull Company Limited and
is deemed under the SFO to be interested in 64,800,000 Shares, i.e.
10.29%, held by Millionfull International and 2,200,000 Shares, i.e.
0.35%, held by Millionfull Company Limited.

Share options
During the Year, no share options were granted to the Directors or any
of their associates.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors or their associates had or were deemed to have any interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were recorded or required to
be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party or parties to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director, as at 31 December 2017, the
following persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which were recorded or required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO:

Name of Shareholder Capacity

RERER &%

Kingdom Investment Holdings Limited
(“Kingdom Investment (BVI)”) (Note 1)

Kingdom Investment Holdings Limited
([Kingdom Investment (BVI) |) (#/7Z1)

BEalEEAA

Millionfull International Co., Ltd.
(“Millionfull International”) (Note 2)

Millionfull International Co., Ltd. EmEA A
(TMillionfull International |) (#/i%2)

Notes:

1. Kingdom Investment (BVI) is owned as to 76.38% by Mr. Ren Weiming,

an executive Director and substantial shareholder of the Company.

2. Millionfull International is owned as to 51.00% by Mr. Ngan Kam Wai
Albert, a non-executive Director, and 23.00% by Ms. Ngan Chan Kattie
Sau Kat, the spouse of Mr. Ngan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Company
had not been notified by any person, other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company, who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded
or required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner
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Approximately

percentage

Number of of issued
Shares share capital (%)
HEBITRA

RHEE BAE D (%)
290,244,000 46.09
64,800,000 10.29

1. RRARRITESREIERRABLRALLEES
Kingdom Investment (BVI) 76.38%) 1 % ©

2. INTESESEEERERBSE XL+ (BAE
BB ) 2 B3 B Millionfull International 51.00%
1223.00%H) # % o

BRIAEMBEEN R-FT—tF+_-_A=1+—
B ARRAEBEEAAL (RRRESREST
BABRRIN) A& ERA QB R R AR RE A (D
REAEARERE S LR EGIIE336/KE R AK
ALAZIGRERARRFEN S MR

NN
KB o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole shareholder of the
Company passed on 15 November 2006, the Company adopted a
share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”).

A new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) with shareholders’
approval at the annual general meeting held on 30 May 2016 was
adopted on the same date.

Subject to the terms of the Old Scheme and the New Scheme,
the Board may at its discretion grant options to: (i) any Director,
employee, consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser
of or contractor to the Group or a company in which the Group
holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”);
or (ii) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or any
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include any
Director, employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier,
agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate;
or (iii) a company beneficially owned by any Director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner, adviser of
or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.

The overall limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the New Scheme and any other schemes must not exceed
30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. Subject to the aforesaid
limit, the total number of Shares available for issue under options
which may be granted under the New Scheme and any other schemes
must not, in aggregate, exceed 62,967,800 Shares, being 10% of
the number of issued shares of the Company as at 30 May 2016, the
date of adoption of the New Scheme, unless separate shareholders’
approval has been obtained.

The maximum entitlement for any one participant under the New
Scheme shall not in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time.

The period within which the options must be exercised will be

specified by the Board at the time of the grant, and must expire no
later than 10 years from the date of grant of option.
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The subscription price for any Share shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant option,
which must be a business day, (ii) an amount equivalent to the
average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the relevant option and (iii) the nominal
value of a share.

Options carrying rights to subscribe for a maximum of 22,250,000
shares were granted on 24 August 2015 (the “Date of Grant”)
pursuant to the Old Scheme and 16,250,000 options remained
outstanding under the Old Scheme as at 31 December 2017 with
details as follows:
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IRIEE 5T &1 9% KT A5 4 7 AT R BE 5 %22,250,000
B BR —ZE—+F+ - =+—HBEE
£1137516,250,0001 R T{E R BEARAE - FBOT

Number of Shares issuable under the options

BRESROABTROSE
Exercise Granted  Exercised Forfeited  Cancelled
price per Asat  during the  during the  during the  during the Asat  Exercise
Grantees Date of Grant share  1/1/2017 year year year year 31/12/2017  period
®
®» —E-tf
ER —B-tF +=A
ARA R AH 58 —-A-B EFRARE FATE FARK FrEHE =t-8B  TEH
HK$
BT
Employees of the Group 24/08/2015 2.0 5,750,000 - - - - 5,750,000 note 1
in aggregate
AEEES B “E-RENAZTHEA Hrstn
Supplier 24/08/2015 2.0 2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000 note 1
HIER “E-RFNAZTMA Htn
Sales agents 24/08/2015 2.0 8,000,000 - - - - 8,000,000 note 7
HERE “ZE-RENAZTEA Mzt
Total & 3f 16,250,000 - - - - 16,250,000
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Note 1:

Subject to the Old Scheme, the share options (the “Share Options”) granted to
the grantees are valid for a period of four years commencing on the Date of
Grant and shall be exercisable during the following periods:

(i) up to 30% of the Share Options granted shall be vested and exercisable
at any time after the expiration of six (6) months from the Date of
Grant; and

(i) the remaining Share Options granted shall be vested and exercisable at
any time after the expiration of twenty-four (24) months from the Date
of Grant.

Share Options carrying rights to subscribe for 16,250,000 shares have
been vested and become exercisable at an exercise price of HK$2.00
per share.

No Share Option under the Old Scheme was exercised during the
Year. No option was granted or exercised under the New Scheme
during the Year.

SHARE AWARD PLAN

The Company has adopted a share award plan (“Share Award
Plan”) on 26 August 2016. The purpose of the Share Award Plan
is to incentivize, recognize and reward eligible persons for their
contribution to the Group, attract and retain personnel, and align
the interests of award holders with that of the Shareholders to
promote the long-term development and financial performance of the
Company.

The Board may, from time to time and at its sole discretion, select any
eligible person to participate in the Share Award Plan and determine
the number of Shares to be awarded and the terms and conditions of
the awards. Awards shall be satisfied by Shares acquired in the market
at the prevailing market price and no new Shares will be allotted and
issued under the Share Award Plan. The trustee of the Share Award
Plan (“Trustee”) shall hold the awarded shares on trust for the award
holders until the awarded Shares are vested in the relevant award
holders according to the Share Award Plan rules. Upon vesting, the
Trustee shall either transfer the vested awarded Shares at no cost to
such award holders or sell the vested awarded Shares at the then
prevailing market price by way of market order and remit the net
proceeds to the award holders in accordance with the direction given
by such award holders.
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The Trustee had purchased an aggregate of 19,400,000 Shares on
the market during the Year to hold on trust for the selected persons
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Share Award Plan rules
and the trust deed. No Shares have been awarded to selected persons
pursuant to the Share Award Plan. The Board will constantly review
and determine at its absolute discretion such number of Awarded
Shares to be awarded to the selected persons under the Share
Award Plan with such vesting conditions as the Board may deem
appropriate.

INTERESTS IN CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance have been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and any controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted
for approximately 17.0% of the Group’s total sales for the Year and
sales to the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately
4.3% of the Group's total sales for the Year. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 49.6%
of the Group’s total purchases for the Year and purchase from the
Group's largest supplier accounted for approximately 19.4% of the
Group's total purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any interests in the Group’s
five largest customers or suppliers noted above.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Continuing connected transactions
During the Year, the Group entered into the following continuing

connected transactions with its connected persons. The transactions

constituted “continuing connected transactions”

for the Company

under the Listing Rules.

1. Lease agreements

(a)

(b)

Jinyuan Lease Agreement

On 30 December 2014, a lease agreement (the “Jinyuan
Lease Agreement”) was entered into by Zhejiang Jinyuan
Flax Co., Ltd., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company (“Zhejiang Jinyuan”) with Zhejiang
Kingdom Creative Co., Ltd., a company which Mr. Ren
Weiming has a controlling equity interest (“Kingdom
Creative”) pursuant to which Zhejiang Jinyuan has leased
a property located at Building 13 to 16, Henggang Xing
Heng Road, Haiyan County, Zhejiang Province, the PRC,
from Kingdom Creative as the Group's office, for a term
from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017 at an annual
rental of RMB200,000.

Jinlainuo Lease Agreement

On 30 January 2017, a lease agreement (the “Jinlainuo
Lease Agreement”) was entered into by Zhejiang
Jinlainuo Fiber Co., Ltd.,
subsidiary of the Company (“Zhejiang Jinlainuo”) with

an indirect wholly-owned

Kingdom Creative pursuant to which Zhejiang Jinlainuo
has leased a property located at Building 18 to 25,
Henggang Xing Heng Road, Haiyan County, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC, from Kingdom Creative for its
manufacturing facilities, for a term of three years from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2019 at an annual rental
of RMB300,000.
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Rental and other terms for these lease arrangements were negotiated
between the parties on arm’s length basis with reference to the then
prevailing market rates. As each of the applicable percentage ratios
for the Jinyuan Lease Agreement and the Jinlainuo Lease Agreement
(on an aggregated basis) are less than 0.1%, the transactions under
the Jinyuan Lease Agreement and the Jinlainuo Lease Agreement
are exempted from all reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

2. Photovoltaic Electricity Purchase Agreement

On 30 June 2017, Zhejiang Jinda Flax Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang
Jinda”) and Zhejiang Jinyuan, both indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, entered into a purchase
agreement (the “Photovoltaic Electricity Purchase Agreement”)
with I )R KA B R A A (“Zhejiang Yuyuan”), pursuant to
which Zhejiang Jinda and Zhejiang Jinyuan agreed to purchase
electricity from Zhejiang Yuyuan for electricity generated
from the photovoltaic electricity system owned, managed and
operated by Yuyuan for a term of three years commencing from
1 July 2017 and ending on 30 June 2020, at an annual cap of
no more than RMB3,500,000 per year. Mr. Ren Weiming, who
ultimately controls the Group, also has a controlling equity
interest over Zhejiang Yuyuan.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
purchased electricity from Zhejiang Yuyuan with an amount of
RMB2,433,000.

The price of electricity was made with a discount rate of
approximately 3.5% to the market prices. As the applicable
percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) for the
Photovoltaic Electricity Purchase Agreement, on an annual
basis, exceed 0.1% but are less than 5%, the transactions
contemplated under the Photovoltaic Electricity Purchase
Agreement is only subject to the reporting, announcement and
annual review requirements, but is exempted from the circular,
independent financial advice and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
For further details, please also refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 30 June 2017 and 3 July 2017.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
the transactions had been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Company;

(i)  either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where
there is no available comparable terms, on terms no less
favorable to the Company than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements, there was
no other transaction which needs to be disclosed as a connected
transaction in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules
during the Year.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2017 are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

Save for the trustee of the Share Award Plan had purchased
an aggregate of 19,400,000 Shares at a total consideration of
HK$22,159,760 on the market during the Year to hold on trust for
the selected persons pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Share Award Plan rules and the trust deed, the Company or any of its
subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the Company’s
listed securities during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles and
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands.

PENSION SCHEMES
Details of the Group’s pension scheme are set out in note 2.4 and
note 7 to the financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required
under Listing Rules throughout the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
Set out below is information disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the
Listing Rules:

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors nor their respective
associates had interests in businesses which compete or are likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Mr. Ren Weiming (“Mr. Ren”) holds directorships and/or interests
respectively, either directly and/or through Kingdom Investment
(BVI) (a controlling shareholder of the Company), in certain private
companies (the “Private Companies”). The Private Companies are
engaged in the silk and/or silk products manufacturing and/or trading
industry, banking and finance leasing (the “Excluded Business”),
which are fundamentally different from the products manufactured by
the Group.

Mr. Ren undertakes, subject to the exceptions mentioned in
the prospectus of the Company dated 30 November 2006 (the
“Prospectus”), that he will not, and will procure that his associates
will not (a) either on his own account or in conjunction with or
on behalf of any person, firm or company, directly or indirectly be
interested or involved or engaged in or acquire or hold an interest
(in each case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent, consultant,
employee or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise)
in any business which is or is about to be engaged in any business
which competes or is likely to compete directly or indirectly with
the Group's business, those other businesses of the Group as set out
in the Prospectus, in Hong Kong, the PRC and any other country or
jurisdiction to which the Group markets or sells its products and/or
in which any member of the Group carries on business mentioned
above from time to time (“Restricted Activity”), or (b) either on his
own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm
or company, or as a principal, shareholder, partner, agent, consultant,
employee or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise,
directly or indirectly, solicit, interfere with or endeavour to entice
away from any member in the Group any person, firm, company
or organisation who to its or his knowledge is now or has been a
customer, supplier or employee of any member in the Group.
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By reasons of the fact that the Excluded Business does not pose any
direct or indirect actual competition with the Group’s business and
that Mr. Ren has already given an undertaking as above referred
to, the Group is therefore capable of carrying on its business
independently of, and at arms’ length from, the Excluded Business as
described above.

Presently, Mr. Ren has no plan to inject the aforesaid Excluded
Business into the Group.

The Company has received from Kingdom Investment (BVI) and Mr.
Ren an annual confirmation that it’he has fully complied with its/
his obligations under the deed of non-competition in favour of the
Company dated 27 November 2006 during the Year.

CORPORATE STRATEGY AND LONG TERM BUSINESS
MODEL

The Company strives to be one of the largest linen yarn manufacturers
in the world through its commitment to sustainable development and
technical innovation, developing proprietary intellectual property
rights, branding of products and pursuing advanced management for
lean management and excellent performance to generate or preserve
value over longer term.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Group's principal corporate governance practices are set out on
pages 50 to 67.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine who are entitled to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from 18 May 2018 to 25 May 2018,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected. In order to determine who are entitled to attend and
vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company shall ensure that all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on 17 May 2018.
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In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed final dividend
(subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting), the register of members of the Company will be
closed from 7 June 2018 to 8 June 2018, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to
determine who are entitled to the proposed final dividend (subject
to approval by the shareholders at the annual general meeting),
unregistered holders of shares of the Company shall ensure that, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at above address for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 6 June 2018. The proposed
final dividend, subject to shareholders” approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, will be paid to shareholders on or before
6 July 2018 whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company at the close of business on 8 June 2018.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Company has not changed its auditors in the
preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

Ren Weiming
Chairman
Haiyan County, the PRC, 23 March 2018
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE OF THE LISTING RULES

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate
governance practices and procedures with a view to being a
transparent and responsible organisation which is open and
accountable to the Company’s shareholders. The Directors believe
that good corporate governance practices are increasingly important
for maintaining and promoting investor confidence. The Company’s
corporate governance practices are based on the principles and code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Directors, save for the deviations to code
provisions A.2.1 and A.4.3 as disclosed below, the Company has
complied with the applicable code provisions as set out in the CG
Code throughout the Year.

Code Provision A.2.1

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and chief executive officer of the Company should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. The
Company does not have any officer with the title of “chief executive
officer”. Mr. Ren Weiming, who acts as the chairman of the Company,
is also responsible for overseeing the general operations of the
Group. The Board meets regularly to consider major matters affecting
the operations of the Company. Given the nature and extent of the
Group's operation and Mr. Ren’s extensive experience in the industry,
the Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance
of power and authority between the Board and the management of
the Company and is conducive to strong and consistent leadership,
enabling the Company to operate efficiently. The Board will
continuously review this structure from time to time to ensure
appropriate and timely action to meet changing circumstances, if
necessary.
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Code Provision A.4.3

Mr. Lau Ying Kit has been serving as an independent non-executive
Director for nine years since November 2015. Pursuant to code
provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, if an independent non-executive
director has served the Company for more than nine years, his/
her appointment could be relevant to the determination of his/her
independence, and his/her further appointment should be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved by shareholders. Accordingly, the
rotation and re-election of Mr. Lau shall be approved by shareholders
by way of separate resolution at the annual general meeting of the
Company.

Mr. Lau has extensive experience in the accounting field. His
participations in the Board bring independent judgments on issues
relating to the Group’s accounts, internal controls, nominations of
directors, conflicts of interests and other management matters. The
Board considered the re-election of Mr. Lau as an independent non-
executive Director can safeguard the interests of the Shareholders.

The Board has received from Mr. Lau a confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and noted
that Mr. Lau has not engaged in any executive management of the
Group. Taking into consideration his independent scope of works
in the past years, the Directors consider Mr. Lau to be independent
under the Listing Rules despite the fact that he has served the
Company for more than nine years.

Mr. Lau was re-elected as an independent non-executive Director at
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 18 May 2015
pursuant to the requirement of code provision A.4.3 of the CG Code.
For further details, please refer to the shareholders” circular and poll
results announcement of the Company dated 15 April 2015 and 18
May 2015, respectively.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules regarding securities transactions by Directors
and devised its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ dealings in
the Company’s securities on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code. Having made specific enquiries
with all Directors, all the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the provisions of the Model Code and the Company’s
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of
this annual report.

TRER®RE

ST AR A4.3

BIEBEER _ZE—AF+—ABEEBLHF
HMITEFENF -RELEERTRNTRIEX
A43 EBEBILIFRTEEHNELIER T8
RARBEBNFRMER—BZEERR KR
BREBERABIAERTVAABRRELBSB-
At BIEEmERELBEEEAGTRRRA
NERFEFAEG FVBIORER T A -

EAR G RBHELELR -2HEEEER
BRAKESE  AMEE EFREL NEFGR
REMEREEFHMEERT mEE B A -
EEgRRBERREERBIUIFNTERIRE
PR A2 o

EZeCBRLERE LTRANE3IGEERE
B WEBR B AN ESEAEBERIT
BERE -BEILEHRARRERBBNAF A
e RZREEENBEFENE L TEEHE &
ERRBEERBEETRUBBELAL

RIBEEE AT AN TAEXA43MRE Bk
AER-Z—AFRAATN\BEITHEAQFRR
BFEARG LERERESBUNTES -E—FFF
BHEE2EARRAHSNA-_E-—RAFOA+H
BR-Z—AFAATN\ARBEKMRERRE
Rffae

ESETRESFXINEETA

ARFCHETETESFR S LR R
THELEMETAESETESFRZNIRETH
(MEEFR ) ERESETARAB SR HHIFT
HAGNFETER RERTBEREETRIFME
MRERE - EAEBESFHREEHE 28
EECHARBE_T—tF+_A=1T—HL
FEREEAFRAY —BEETRETRNGK
NEARREREFETESFRSNIT R

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z = RAR A 7

51



52

Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

THE BOARD

The Board consists of eight Directors, four of whom are executive
Directors, one of whom is non-executive Director and three of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. The functions and duties
conferred on the Board include: overseeing the Group’s businesses,
strategic decisions and performance, promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising its affairs, convening
shareholders’” meetings and reporting on the work of the Board to
the shareholders at shareholders” meetings as may be required by the
applicable laws, implementing resolutions passed at shareholders’
meetings, determining the Company’s business plans and investment
plans, formulating the Company’s annual budget and final accounts,
formulating the Company’s proposals for dividend and bonus
distributions as well as exercising other powers, functions and duties
as conferred on it by the Articles and the applicable laws. The senior
management is delegated with the authority and responsibilities
by the Board for the day-to-day management and operations of the
Group.

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company, and considers and approves the overall
strategies and policies of the Company.

The composition of the Board and attendance of individual Directors
at meetings of the Board, the Remuneration Committee, the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee during the Year under
review are as follows:

Directors EE

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Ren Weiming ElALE
(Chairman of the Board) (EE2FE)

Mr. Shen Yueming TLERRA ST

Mr. Zhang Hongwen KRB AL

Ms. Shen Hong Rt

Non-executive Director EHTES

Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert BeELE

Independent non-executive Directors ~ BIFHTES

Mr. Lau Ying Kit S
(Chairman of the Audit Committee) (BERZESLE)

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson BEELLE
(Chairman of the Nomination (IEEZEEL/E)
Committee)

Mr. Yan Jianmiao BRERTE
(Chairman of the Remuneration (FWZEES L)

Committee)
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The biographical details of the current Board members are set out
under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 26 to 29 of this annual report. Save as otherwise disclosed,
there is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material relationship) between any members of the Board.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time. The independent non-executive Directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-
executive Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise, and the
independent non-executive directors represented over one-third of
the Board.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All Board members have separate and independent access to the
Company’s senior management to fulfil their duties and, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense. All Directors
also have access to the company secretary who is responsible for
ensuring that the Board procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations, are followed. An agenda and accompanying Board/
committee papers are distributed to the Directors/Board committee
members with reasonable notice in advance of the meetings. Minutes
of Board meetings and meetings of Board committees, which records
in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting
views expressed, are kept by the company secretary and are available
for inspection by the Directors.
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Pursuant to article 87 of the Articles, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least
once every three years and is eligible for re-election. In accordance
with article 87 of the Articles, Ms. Shen Hong, Mr. Yan Jianmiao and
Mr. Lau Ying Kit shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. All retiring Directors being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election as Directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
The following statement, which sets out the responsibilities of the
Directors in relation to the financial statements, should be read
in conjunction with, but be distinguished from, the Independent
Auditors” Report on pages 70 to 75 which states the reporting
responsibilities of the Group's auditors.

Annual Report and Accounts
The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group.

Accounting Policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements, the
Group has used appropriate accounting policies that are consistently
applied, and that all applicable accounting standards have been
followed.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and the
applicable accounting standards.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

The Company does not have any officer with the title of “chief
executive officer”. Mr. Ren Weiming, who acts as the chairman of the
Company, is also responsible for overseeing the general operations
of the Group. The Board meets regularly to consider major matters
affecting the operations of the Company. The Board considers that this
structure will not impair the balance of power and authority between
the Board and the management of the Company and is conducive to
strong and consistent leadership, enabling the Company to operate
efficiently.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert, a non-executive Director, has renewed
his service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 1 January 2016.

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson and Mr. Lau Ying Kit, independent non-
executive Directors, have renewed their appointments with the
Company with the same terms for another three years commencing
on 1 January 2016. Mr. Yan Jianmiao was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, the appointment of which was
approved at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
30 May 2016. Mr. Yan has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of three years with similar terms as other
independent non-executive Directors commencing on 30 May 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

During the Year, the Directors are provided with regular updates on
the Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In
addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company updates the Directors on the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
During the Year, the Company arranged a training covering topic on
capital raisings by listed issuers for Directors’ continuous professional
development. All Directors, excepted Mr. Lau Ying Kit, attended the
training. Mr. Lau Ying Kit confirmed that he has attended other similar
continuous professional trainings not arranged by the Company
during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE
AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged liability insurance to indemnify its
Directors and officers in respect of legal actions against them. During
the Year, no claim had been made against the Directors and officers of
the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, Mr. Chan Yan Kwan Andy, the company secretary of
the Company, attended relevant professional training for not less than
15 hours.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
All Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors and the list of the Chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out under “Corporate
Information” on page 2 of this annual report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has adopted written terms of
reference prepared by reference to the requirements under the
code provision B.1.2 of the CG Code. The primary functions of the
Remuneration Committee are to consider and recommend to the
Board the remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company
to the Directors and senior management. The remuneration of all
Directors and senior management is subject to regular monitoring
by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the levels of their
remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang
Hongwen, Mr. Yan Jianmiao (chairman of the Remuneration
Committee) and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once every year to
review the remuneration policy and structure and determination of
the annual remuneration packages of the executive Directors and
the senior executives and other related matters. The Remuneration
Committee shall make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the
Year. At the meeting, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration policies of the Directors and the senior management.
The attendance record of each member of the Remuneration
Committee at the said meeting is set out in the table below:

Name of Directors BEEHR

Mr. Zhang Hongwen R/ KA

Mr. Yan Jianmiao (Chairman) BRERSTE (£E)
Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson BEERE
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee has adopted written terms of reference
prepared by reference to the requirements under the code provision
A.5.2 of the CG Code. The primary functions of the Nomination
Committee are to review the Board diversity policy and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or reappointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, based on skills,
knowledge and experience, to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy. The Nomination Committee comprises one executive
Director and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Shen Yueming, Mr. Lau Ying Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson
(chairman of the Nomination Committee).

One meeting was held during the Year. At the meeting, the
Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition
of the Board and the Board diversity policy. The attendance record of
each member of the Nomination Committee at the said meeting is set
out in the table below:

Name of Directors EEp

Mr. Shen Yueming TLERPA ST

Mr. Lau Ying Kit E EE S

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson (Chairman) — BEE%%E (£/E)

The Nomination Committee also determined the policy for the
nomination of Directors and the nomination procedures and the
process and criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee to select
and recommend candidates for directorship during the Year.
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Measurable objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to, textile industry experience,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board’s composition
(together with details on textile industry experience, age, gender and
holding of office in textile association) are as follows:

Textile Industry

Name experience Age
# & METRER Fik
REN Weiming Yes 58
T4 ) 58
SHEN Yueming Yes 56
LG ) 56
ZHANG Hongwen Yes 51
R/ ) 51
SHEN Hong Yes 51
s ) 51
NGAN Kam Wai Albert Yes 68
BE ) 68
LAU Ying Kit No 44
BT & 44
LO Kwong Shun Wilson No 44
BERE B 44
YAN Jianmiao No 52
BoEE & 52

The Company’s measurable objectives of the Board diversity policy
are as follows:

1) At least half of the members of the Board should have textile
industry experience.

2) At least one Director should hold office/honorary title in the
textile association in order to ensure the Company to receive
first-hand information about the development and challenges of
the industry.

3)  Gender is not the key consideration. It will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in compliance with Rules 3.21
and 3.22 of the Listing Rules and with written terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process, risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and to provide advice and comments to the Board.

The Audit Committee is responsible for determining the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

J to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

J to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management;

o to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where
applicable);

o to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and

compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Group; and

J to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Lau Ying
Kit, Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson and Mr. Yan Jianmiao, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Lau Ying Kit, who has
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in accounting
matters, was appointed as the Chairman of the Audit Committee.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee held three meetings. At the
meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the final results of 2016
and interim results of 2017 with the external auditors and also the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control functions, as well as the
assessment of impact of new IFRSs to the Group. The attendance
record of each member of the Audit Committee at the said meetings is
set out in the table below:

EEgR

Name of Directors

M. Lau Ying Kit (Chairman) BIERGESRE (FE)

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson REERL
Mr. Yan Jianmiao B A

During the Year, the Audit Committee also reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, internal control and risk management, the
compliance with the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosures in this Corporate Governance
Report.

The Directors are collectively responsible for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which have
been prepared on a going concern basis, and complies with the
requirements of the Listing Rules. There has been no disagreement
between the Directors and the Audit Committee regarding the
selection and appointment of the external auditors.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has in place sound and effective internal controls to
safeguard shareholders” investment and assets of the Company and
its subsidiaries. The Audit Committee is entrusted by the Board to
monitor the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems on an ongoing basis so as to ensure that the
internal control and risk management systems in place, including the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes,
accounting, internal audit, compliance and financial reporting
functions of the Company are adequate.
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The Company has established written policies and procedures
applicable to all operating units to ensure the effectiveness of internal
controls. The Company also has a process for identifying, evaluating
and managing significant risks associated with the achievement of its
operational objective. The day-to-day operation of the Company is
entrusted to the individual department, which is accountable for its
own conduct and performance, and is required to strictly adhere to
the policies set by the Board/Audit Committee. The Company carries
out reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control systems from
time to time in order to ensure that they are able to meet and deal
with the dynamic and ever changing business environment.

The Company has established an optimized risk management and
internal control system consisting of the Board, Audit Committee,
management team, internal control and all departments of the
Company. In respect of risk management and internal control, all
departments of the Company are the first line of defence, the internal
control and management team are the second line of defence and
the Audit Committee under the Board are the third line of defence.
The Board is ultimately responsible for the development of a sound
risk management and internal control system of the Company and
the effective implementation of risk management, and is the highest
decision-making authority for risk management and internal control
of the Company.

The primary objective of risk management is to have all the business
risks effectively identified, measured, analysed and controlled, such
as having them measured against defined limits, monitored, reported
and managed (including mitigation of risks), followed by the pursuit
of business development on the premise of keeping risks in check.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Audit Committee conducted review and assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control systems twice during
the Year including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management.
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During the Year, the Company scrutinized and identified potential
risks associated with its corporate structure and business operation by
executing basic risk management procedures in all key operations.
A risk register of the Company was established to gain substantial
information on its overall risk characteristics, providing a solid
foundation for risk management and internal control.

The Company conducted an analysis and assessment on the identified
risks based on their possibility and influence, so as to determine the
risk levels and identify the significant risks faced by the Company.
A summary of key risks identified from the perspective of global
economy, industry and company level was reviewed and discussed
by the Audit Committee and the Board.

Based on review of the results of risk management and internal
control, no material failure or weakness was found in respect of
risk monitoring during the Year. The management procedures of
financial reports and information disclosure of the Company is in
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Board considered that the risk
management and internal control of the Company is effective during
the Year and up to date of this annual report.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware
of its obligations under Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules and the
Securities and Futures Ordinance and the overriding principle that
inside information of the Company should be announced as soon
as practicable. The Company reviews from time to time its internal
guidelines on inside information or potentially price sensitive
information with reference to its own and industry circumstances and
the Guide on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the Securities
and Futures Commission.

The Company’s policy contains a strict prohibition on unauthorized
use of confidential or inside information. The Chairman and the chief
financial officer of the Company are the key spokespersons of the
Company in all external media communications.

The purpose of streamlining the communications of the Group with
the media is to regulate all media communication activities, protect
the interests of the Company and keep inside information strictly
confidential prior to its disclosure.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION % B4R % A
During the Year, the remuneration paid to the Company’s external — PAF R T AR B HNBAZEAD L2k 5T AI F 75
auditors, Ernst & Young, is set out as follows: Frey s BHE 2 an T
Service rendered RAHNRE Fee paid
EfEA
RMB’000
ARETF T
Audit Services EZARTE 1,800
Tax services B R 143

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to the 2017  MNBZEENE — T — Lt FH B MENBETHRE
financial statements are set out in the section headed “Independent 708 ZZE758 /) [B U ZEEMME | — 87 BRIA L
Auditors’ Report” on pages 70 to 75. Save as disclosed above and in K [\ 2 EAN RS | —Ei T BEE SN AR AR
the section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report”, the Company did & Al 8 2 B2 2Kk & 5 A0 =5 75 BT 32 (i F r] E b 3F
not engage Ernst & Young for any non-audit services during the Year. BEAZRT

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS B R A

(i)  Procedures for shareholders to convene an (i) BREBBABRRFIAENERF (BFER
extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) (including ES2ERNRREIAEREESR
making proposals/moving a resolution at the EGM to be BERER)

called by the Board)

e Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of o SN LENEZERKBHFE
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the RORAERBREHRAR (BB RRF]
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of BERE IREE)THZ —HBER
voting at general meetings of the Company (the “Eligible (IBERRR]) NMEAR RSB ESE
Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have the right, by BAARBDEEFERAAWE ([AF
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary RMEDZELHEEREZ R EkEEEY
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require FECRERIAS  NEEA B E R
an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction ERAMERER BENERRE A
of any business specified in such requisition, including SLREERNPARIER-
putting forward proposals or moving a resolution at the
EGM.
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Eligible Shareholders who wish to require an EGM
to be called by the Board for the purpose of making
proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM must
deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed
by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary. The
Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding
in the Company, the reason(s) to convene an EGM,
the agenda of the EGM including the details of the
business(es) proposed to be transacted at the EGM,
signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned.

The Company will check the Requisition and the identity
and the shareholding of the Eligible Shareholder will be
verified with the Company’s branch share registrar. If
the Requisition is found to be proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene an
EGM within two months and/or include the proposal
or the resolution proposed by the Eligible Shareholder
at the EGM after the deposit of the Requisition. On the
contrary, if the Requisition has been verified as not in
order, the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, the Board will
not convene an EGM and/or include the proposal or the
resolution proposed by the Eligible Shareholder at the
EGM.

If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition, the
Board has not advised the Eligible Shareholders of any
outcome to the contrary and fails to proceed to convene
such EGM, the Eligible Shareholder(s) himself/herself/
themselves may do so in accordance with the Articles,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned by the Company.
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(ii) Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board
Shareholders of the Company may send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board by addressing them to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong by post
or email to ir@kingdom-china.com for the attention of the
investors relation department of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group firmly believes the importance of communicating with
the investment community and the shareholders in attaining a high
level of transparency. Since its listing, the Group has maintained
various communication channels with analysts and fund managers
such as one-to-one meetings, telephone communications, and press
releases. The general meetings of the Company provide a platform
for communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
Chairman of the Board as well as Chairmen of the Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Audit Committee or if, in
their absence, other members of the respective committees, and
where applicable, the independent board committee, are available
to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings. The Company
endeavours to provide timely and accurate information to the
investors to enhance the understanding of the investors about the
linen industry, as well as the business development strategy and
direction of the Group.

The Group will continue to maintain a close relationship with
investors and develop greater understanding about the Group for
international investors, to enhance investors’ confidence in the
Group.

There is no change in the Articles during the Year. An up-to-date

version of the Company’s Articles is also available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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CONTACT DETAILS
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Kingdom Holdings Limited
Level 54 Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Board of Directors)

Fax: +852 3628 2284
Email: ir@kingdom-china.com
DISCLAIMER

The contents of the section headed “Shareholders” Rights” are for
reference and disclosure compliance purposes only. The information
does not represent and should not be regarded as legal or other
professional advice from the Company to the shareholders.
Shareholders should seek their own independent legal or other
professional advice as to their rights as shareholders of the Company.
The Company disclaims all liabilities and losses incurred by its
shareholders in reliance on any contents of this section headed
“Shareholders” Rights”.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B S

et
EY::

To the shareholders of Kingdom Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingdom
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 76 to 188, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

B ZBENRE

BRREFETEE

FARE FHERERMNFERHAE - R RE A
BHMBBERNETRAEENER ELEHE
ERPEAEBAHMBRR MDA RFET
BEM- LT EHELEREHERBNER -]
I8 Tl —FBAR D RO RS HTD
R REF -

BPEKEIT T NS [ ZHENI T & G
HAAEMEL BoBANET BFEEELESE
AR R T - AR RPN ET TERENT
RELFHE A G TSR R M E K3 AR PR L L B T
HETORF - RARTEAEFNER  BEESH
T EEAAITHRF RSB BEH A G %R
REREBEABRRREHETER-

accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

REETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REREFTHRONMESH

Assessment on impairment for non-current assets

FET BB E B BB AT

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment, prepaid land lease payments and
intangible assets was RMB797 million which represented
41% of the Group’s total assets. As the carrying amount
of the Group’s net assets was higher than the Company’s
market capitalization, management performed an
impairment test on its non-current assets. This assessment
requires management to make certain key assumptions,
such as cash flow projections covering a five-year period,
the future growth rate and the discount rate which are
highly judgemental.
R-Z—tF+-A=1+—R 9% BFE;&EH L1l
ERNFENETEENRESE/ARK797,000,000
ot BEEEEELENN% B BEEBEFEERN
FHsEERN EQRNME REEECHIFRBEE
ETRENA - WBREREEEELETHERER R
FHREREBR RIERXEFREK - FELE-

Our audit procedures included assessing and challenging
the key assumptions including those related to future
increases in turnover, expected growth rates and the
discount rates, projection period and disposal values of
the non-current assets at the end of the projection period
applied. In performing our audit procedures, we involved
our internal valuation specialists to assess the valuation
methodology used and key assumptions applied.

HMMES R RENM G RERZFHBER BREAR
BRARREANARRERBEER BYPERRRAREX.
BRAMEIFRBEENHEEBERARE - NETETET
B M ZEAREEERFERGHETARERE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

AEETEE@m

Key audit matter

HAEEITEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REREFTHRONMESHN

Assessment on impairment for non-current assets

FER B EE B B (B A S

The company provides detail information in note 3 to the
financial statements.

BERRARB B HmRM AR E IS

We also reviewed historical financial performance of
the business units and compared them with the original
forecasts when evaluating management’s budgeting
process.

BATERIEBETNELMBRE LRERETER
LE- M EEERERENBIE-

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

B ZBENRE

EEREHUBBRARENEE

BERREFAREREER G ENEETERM
B (BRI B REER) REE (QREG)
BREHEEEMTENAHMB®RE  WHER
BREAMHMEREOEE TN FERRRFFRE
RMERHEAHEREAFAFARTIZEHEE -

EREBaMBHRRE BEARNEFAEER
it BEREFBLENRN TEERBERTRE
EBEKERRNER URERKELERS
AR CBRIE BEAREFARH BEEEBRN
FIEE S EEMERNER TR

BERZEEWY BEAREFRETRE BB &
SEMMBREBE-

BRBMRES M BRRABNER

BAPNBER THAHMBERRBEBIS A
MR AFF R ME R EAERRAINEG A E
g WHABRBEHMERNRBE RS - RFIE
HEBRRELRE RSN RRELEEAM
R RPIT & BB R E N AT R EREA
AL B ESAEEFAEE

BRRARFRSKFHORE BTERBZR (BB
FRTEAD) EITHEN  ER-EAERRAFE
By 48 R 3538 o SR PR AT LA BRFF SRR R 51 - 40
REBEEHCMEBHELLRATELES G
BMKRERERBEE Gt BRI EL KRR
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

J Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

J Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that was of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matter. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lau Kwok Wa, Lawrence.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

23 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BHfEER

Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z_-F—+F+ _-HA=+—HILFZF
REVENUE WA

Cost of sales HE A

Gross profit A

Other income and gains H AW e R iF e

Selling and distribution expenses HE RN HAX
Administrative expenses THFEX

Other expenses H A %

Finance costs B R AR
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBLAT (B1E) EF
Income tax credit/(expense) FristiEe, (Ax)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic

Diluted

2017 Annual Report —ZE—t+F &3]

B TSI B G
NEER A
FEFEHI M
BAREERER
FEARGEESR
(&8]) &7
BN

8

2017 2016
ZE—LF A

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k2 ARETR AREF T
5 1,023,962 856,243
(907,694) (704,365)

116,268 151,878

5 25,575 54,358
(39,361) (37,951)

(49,670) (58,968)

(38,200) (643)

6 (17,712) (16,059)

7 (3,100) 92,615
10 3,722 (22,586)
622 70,029

(3,132) 66,344

3,754 3,685

12 RMBAR¥(0.01)7 RMBA R#0.117T
12 RMBA R #(0.01)7T RMBAR®0.117C




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

EfEEWER

Year ended 31 December 2017 B Z=F—+F+=H=+—HIFFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
to be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

F A

BRERPRENR RS
Bt R E M2 E S
e ik

BEBINROEN Z8
FREERZAE

f T 5118 B e -
FATEEA
SEAR S M 26

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AREET T
622 70,029

613 (280)

1,235 69,749
2,519) 66,064
3,754 3,685
1,235 69,749

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z = RAR A 7
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B O iR &

31 December 2017 R-ZF—+F+=-H=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Prepaid land lease payments
Other intangible assets
Prepayments for equipment
Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade and notes receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Derivative financial instruments

Other current assets

Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and notes payables

Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Derivative financial instruments
Tax payable

Other current liability

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

2017 Annual Report —ZE—t+F &3]

FRBEE
ME-BE LR E
REME

T EENFIA
HipEEE
RETEN FOR
EERIAE E
HipIFRBEE

FRBEEMRE

REBEE

TE

FEWE 5 B SN R W R %

B e REMER
R

TEERTA

HipRE & E

[REERLEERA

AekREEFED

MEEERE

REBEE
ENEZERLENRERE
Hip A FIERIARE H
FRRITEE
TESmMTA

e IR

Hip A&

i B=REEGE
REBEEFE
BEERERARBRE

Notes
Bt

13
14
15
16

17

18
19

20
21

22
22

23
24
25
21

31 December

31 December

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
+=ZA=+—H +=-—A=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREF T
726,532 601,537
7,529 8,129
64,837 66,283
5,834 8,137
7,571 31,401
14,640 3,304

407 -
827,350 718,791
531,212 509,591
310,215 297,964
68,650 44,435

- 5,788

851 -

50,314 74,355
173,824 279,511
1,135,066 1,211,644
189,783 129,489
93,979 50,314
519,561 531,103
7,002 -
16,054 16,009

851 -
827,230 726,915
307,836 484,729
1,135,186 1,203,520




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B O IR &

37 December 2017 R=-ZF—+F+=-H=+—H

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities
Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Total non-current liabilities
Net assets

EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners of the
parent

Share capital
Treasury shares
Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Ren Weiming
1E#E A

Director

EF

Notes
ok
EEHAERRBER
ERBEE
RIEFRIE B FE 17
FFRIRITIEE 25
IEmBAERSE
BEFE
e
[SYNCIE PPN g
& A 26
EFRGD 28
& 29

FEFR I MR 5

AR

31 December

31 December

2017 2016
—E—tF —T-REF
+t=A=+t—-8B +ZHA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT
1,135,186 1,203,520
9,390 16,284
75,600 100,800
84,990 117,084
1,050,196 1,086,436
6,329 6,329
(19,508) -
1,030,936 1,061,422
1,017,757 1,067,751
32,439 18,685
1,050,196 1,086,436

Shen Yueming
L
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
BN EREE K

Year ended 31 December 2017 B Z=F—+F+=H=+—HIFFE

At 1 January 2016

Profit for the year

Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year

Capital injection

Final 2015 dividend declared

Equity-settled share option
amangements

Transfer from retained profits

At 31 December 2016 and
1 January 2017

Profit for the year
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year

Capital injection

Final 2016 dividend declared

Repurchase of share capital

Equity-settled share option
amangements

Transfer from retained profits

At 31 December 2017

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAAREARL
Share Non-
Share Share Treasury Merger  Statutory option  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium shares reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interest equity
BRE 2R
BE  ROEE ERRG  A0RE iRk e EXRE REEA @t BE  BEAR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:
(note 26) (note 29) (note 28) (note 29) (note 29) (note 27) (note 29)
(fitzs)  (Wiz9)  (Wizs)  (Hak29)  (Waiz9)  (Witzz)  (Wi29)
RZE-7§-A-A 6329 271389 - 19816 106,752 1,636 (3354 464410 1,043,978 - 1,043,978
EREF - - - - - - - 66,344 66,344 3,685 70,029
BEBNEBNELZE
_ _ _ - - - 280) - (280) - (280)
EncERE/ (BR)48
- - - - - - (280) 66,344 66,004 3,685 69,749
& - - - - - - - - - 15,000 15,000
BER-E-RERHRA - (434) - - - - - (42,233)  (42,667) - (42,667)
NERGEBRELS
- - - - - 376 - - 376 - 376
ERARBER - - - - 5784 - - (5,784) - - -
R-F-RE+-A=t-H
k=%-+5-f-8 6,329 270,955* - 196,816* 112,536* 2,012% (3,634 482,737 1,067,751 18,685 1,086,436
EREHN - - - - - - - (3,132) (3,132) 3,754 622
BEBNEBNEL 2R
- - - - - - 613 - 613 - 613
ER2EYE/ (BE)4E
- - - - - - 613 (3,132) 2,519 3,754 1,35
pid - - - - - - - - - 10,000 10,000
BERZE-RERERE - (2,636) - - - - - (2552)  (28162) - (28,162)
[ Eles - - (19,508) - - - - - (19,508) - (19,508)
NERGERRERS
- - - - - 195 - - 195 - 195
ERAR2ER - - - - 1,679 - - (1,679) - - -
RZF—+4+-B=1-8 6329 268319* (19508 196816 114215 2,207¢ B021)F 452400¢ 1,017,757 32439 1,050,196

statement of financial position.
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These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
RMBT1,030,936,000 (2016: RMB1,061,422,000) in the consolidated
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Aﬁﬂﬁﬁum%%

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Fair value losses/(gains) on derivative
instruments
— transactions not qualifying as hedges

Equity-settled share option expense

Depreciation

Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments

Amortisation of other intangible assets

(Reversal of)/provision for impairment of
inventories

(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Reversal of provision for impairment of trade
receivables

Finance costs

Bank interest income

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

(Increase)/decrease in trade and notes
receivables

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

(Increase)/decrease from other
non-current assets

Proceeds from pledged deposits

New pledged deposits

Decrease in derivative financial assets

Decrease in derivative financial liabilities

Increase in trade and notes payables

Increase in other payables and accruals

Cash generated from operations

Interest received
Income tax paid

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

Year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 =%

RETBNRELRE
BRiAT (E51R), & A
SNBSS IAE L RO

PTET AR
(18%)
—NEERELH NS

AR A BIRER X

e

T AR & A RIE

Eofth ST & B B

FERE (EE), B

N BEEE

HEME  BERE
(B8%)/ BB
FEWE 5 BR SR E B e ]

RBIERA

BIRE AR
RITH B WA

FE (Em,md

W E 2R B R
(#8hn) /m

FAN R 2 I H b e Y IR
(1gh0) R

HA3Eme & E (1) 8

e o) SR
MEEEBER
MTEeMEERD
MEeRAaERY

FERTE 5 IR R R T =R IG N
E e IA R FEIR B g N

REEENRS
B A B
B FHR

rERYELE (A

BEREFHE

E—tFF_HA=F—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETF T
(3,100) 92,615
7,002 (5,788)
195 376
60,717 60,137
1,446 2,171
536 573
(4,540) 4,274
730 (1,191)
(312) (677)
17,712 16,059
(899) (2,260)
79,487 166,289
(17,081) (172,963)
(11,939) 9,534
(24,215) (15,904)
(407) -
69,183 8,540
(57,513) (6,017)
5,788 -

- (2,258)
60,294 31,441
43,665 (1,148)
147,262 17,514
899 2,260
(14,463) (23,543)
133,698 (3,769)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHRERER

Year ended 31 December 2017 B Z=F—+F+=H=+—HIFFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

Prepayments for equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of intangible
assets

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Share repurchase

New bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Proceeds from pledged deposits

New pledged deposits

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Capital contribution from non-controlling
shareholders

Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
statement of financial position
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Kingdom Holdings Limited was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability on 21
July 2006. The Company’s shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 12
December 2006.

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of linen yarns.

The Company’s registered office address is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands; and the principal place of business is located
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

1.

Nominal value of

Place and date issued
of incorporation/

Name of company establishment

ordinary/

registered
share capital

EMmEL, ERTLEREE/
DNAEH Ryt ER A ELEN
Overseas Kingdom Limited British Virgin Islands (“BV1") HK$0.01/HK$500
26 July 2006
Overseas Kingdom Limited KBRS 0.0187T,/500% 7T
((RBRZEE])
“ETRELAZTRA
Kingdom Group Holdings Limited ~ Hong Kong, China HK$1,250,000
(“Hong Kong Kingdom”) 10 September 2004
TEEEERERA TEEE 1,250,000 7T
([BEeE]) “EEMEAATH
Zhejiang Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd. PRC US$43,820,000
18 March 2003
HIETEMARAA] P E 43,820,000% 7

“ER=FZA+N\R

Bt 5 S R B

As at 31 December 2017 RZ-ZE—+#F+=-HA=+—H
"ﬁ&%.ﬁ*ﬁl
SEZERBR AN _ZEZEFLAZ +*

Eﬁﬁ'ﬂxﬁ%afﬂﬂﬁ%iﬁﬁé%’ﬁﬁ’aﬁﬁﬁ
$"ﬂﬂx TR EERFT AT EIEE
BMERSMBRAR ([BRPT]) £

AEBEBERELEERHEETMY -

NN AR FE M SRR AL A Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands : £+ &
EEMB AR BB 2R/ RNER1835E
U544 o

EREHMBATNER
ARFRKMBRBFBEWAT -

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company  Principal activities

ANAEGEREE DL TEXH
Direct Indirect
EH# Gk
100% - Investment holding
RERK
- 100%  Investment holding and
trading
RERRLES
- 100%  Manufacture and sale of
linen yarns
EERBETMY

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z = RAR A 7

83



84

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B 5 S Ak B

As at 31 December 2017

R-F—tF+=-A=1+—H

1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Name of company

DAEH

Jiangsu Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd.

TIHETEMERAH

Jiangsu Ziwei Flax Co., Ltd.

IHERTMAERAR

Zhejiang Jinda Flax Co., Ltd.

HIeEEMERAH

Zhejiang Jinlainuo Fiber Co., Ltd.

MIEREGEBRAA

Zhaosu Jindi Flax Co., Ltd.

RESHTMBER AR

2017 Annual Report —ZE—t+tH &

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
HEm&L/
BB R AH

PRC
17 October 2003

HE
“EZ=F+ATLH

PRC
26 October 2006

HE
ZEERETAZTAH

PRC
28 May 2012

R
—E-——FRA-F/\H

PRC
28 February 2012
i
i Sk Sy e AN

PRC
23 May 2007

HEl
“TTEFRAC-+=H

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered

share capital
BRTEZEREE/
Bl e

US$18,500,000

18,500,000 75

US$10,000,000

10,000,000 75

RMB100,000,000

AE%100,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000

AE#10,000,0007T

RMB30,000,000

AER#30,000,0007C

AEAIREERER @

A2 AN ER
ARFMBRATFEDT : ()

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

AARELERB AL
Direct Indirect

BEE R

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

Principal activities

TEER

Manufacture and sale of
linen yarns

EEREETMY

Manufacture and sale of
linen yarns

EERHEETMY

Manufacture and sale of
linen yarns

EERHEETMY

Manufacture and sale of
linen fibre

LERHET MR

Processing of agriculture
products
REMMNT



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Bt 5 S R B

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Name of company

DAEH

Kingdom Europe S.R.L.

Kingdom Europe S.R.L.

Kingdom (Ethiopia) Linen PLC
(“Kingdom (Ethiopia)”)

Kingdom (Ethiopia) Linen PLC
([Kingdom (Ethiopia) |)

Heilongjiang Jinda Flax and
Hemp Co., Ltd.
REISEMEBRAR

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
HEm&L/
Rt 2R A

Italy
7 September 2007
BAH
“ERLFNALE

Ethiopia
16 July 2014
REMILD
—E-MELATRA

PRC
11 March 2016

HE
—Z-R"E=A+-A

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered

share capital
BRTEZEREE/
Bl e

EUR502,646

502,646 7T

US$200,000

200,000 7T

RMB110,000,000

AE#110,000,0007T

As at 31 December 2017

AEAIREERER @

R-F—tF+=-A=1+—H

A2 AN ER
ARFMBRATFEDT : ()

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

AARELERBAL
Direct Indirect
EE B
- 100%
- 100%
- 73%

Principal activities

TEER

Trading

ED

Manufacture and sale of
linen yarns

EERHEETMY

Manufacture and sale of
linen yarns

EERHEETMY

Kingdom Holdings Limited $Z = RAR Q7
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for derivative financial
instruments which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand (RMB’000), except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2017. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).When
the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(i) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.1

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+#+-H=+—H

WREE @)

EHEE @

B 8 A R ERAS A B B B 7S R 2k B 3RS B RS 4B
Bl WA — B BREER M E QR
EERAEBIRSZEHENBEBESFA
R WHEASHFABREZZSEHEAKIEE
HAIE-

PrESRERNRRIHEEENEE #xE - WA
X MEREEKENRERZIEBNES
MEBANEHEEARZHIEE-

MEEEXBERABRTN EXERANBARNE
AR ZTRIE I TR E R A
ZIHERNE AAEEEEHHEEES
ZHRIREHR - MEBRREAEEDNE
(YR EIRFIE) RERRH AR

AR ERELM B AR ZESE g
HEROZMBARNEE (BEAE) MA
18 ~ (i) o] R4 1 14 42 25 10 R 8 & 88 K (i)
RIER NI RFHREZE  RERGM
WREHAAEE (VERRBRENAR
BE K (i) B AR R E A R B R HE
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

Disclosure Initiative
Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to IAS 7
Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
included in Annual of Entities: Clarification the Scope
Improvements to IFRSs of IFRS 12
2014-2016 Cycle

None of the above amendments to IFRSs has had a significant
financial effect on these financial statements. Disclosure has
been made in note 30(b) to the financial statements upon the
adoption of amendments to IAS 7, which require an entity to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes.

2017 Annual Report —ZE—t+F &3]

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B 5 S Ak B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H
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2.3

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 15

IFRS 16

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions’

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Financial Instruments’

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’

Clarifications to IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’

Leases?

2.3

Bt 5 S R B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STAN DARDS (continued)

IFRS 17
Amendments to IAS 28
Amendments to IAS 40
IFRIC 22
IFRIC 23

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

2018
2019

2021

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption
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Insurance Contracts’

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures’
Transters of Investment Property’

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments”

Amendments to IFRS 1 and
IAS 28’

Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11,
IAS 12 and IAS 237

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

EEMERERERN (BB R

HZEHD @

R ==A

(BRI
E175

(e ER)
E28REBETA
(e ER)
BA0REBETA
(ER I BRERE
ZEERE) 20N
(BRI BRERE
ZEERE) 2%

FE# - F—IFE
EoEFFEY

EENE-F-FE
EoEFLFEY

FREEAP

REZRFREELFEY
KA
BEREYNF

NEZGRBIRE
BB Ry T 1

(BT a RS 2B B))
FIFR (B e E
BY) B85 aEAT A

(BT a RS 2B B))
355 (B L
R EF1g (FE S
SFER) F128 R
(BB 251 ER)) #23
FHEET A

! R-F-NF—A—-HEZEFBEFE

H[E £ 3%

? R-B-NF—H— AR R FE

H[E £ 3%

’ RIFE-Z—F—F—HAZEFEHTFE

H[E £ 3%

4 1] AR TE SR I F B - AT R R



2.3

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment Transactions

The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 in June 2016 that
address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions
on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction; the classification of a share-based payment
transaction with net settlement features for withholding a
certain amount in order to meet an employee’s tax obligation
associated with the share-based payment; and the accounting
where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-
based payment transaction changes its classification from
cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments clarify that
the approach used to account for vesting conditions when
measuring equity-settled share-based payments also applies to
cash-settled share-based payments. The amendments introduce
an exception so that a share-based payment transaction with
net share settlement features for withholding a certain amount
in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation is classified in
its entirety as an equity-settled share-based payment transaction
when certain conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction are modified, with the result that it
becomes an equity-settled share-based payment transaction,
the transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled transaction
from the date of the modification. On adoption, entities are
required to apply the amendments without restating prior
periods, but retrospective application is permitted if they elect
to adopt for all three amendments and other criteria are met.
The Group will adopt the amendments from 1 January 2018.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

2.3

As at 31 December 2017
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B 5 S Ak B

As at 31 December 2017

2.3

R-F—tF+=-A=1+—H

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9,
bringing together all phases of the financial instruments
project to replace IAS 39 and all previous versions of IFRS 9.
The standard introduces new requirements for classification
and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The
Group will adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group
will not restate comparative information and will recognise
any transition adjustments against the opening balance
of equity at 1 January 2018. During 2017, the Group has
performed a detailed assessment of the impact of the adoption
of IFRS 9. The expected impacts relating to the classification
and measurement and the impairment requirements are
summarised as follows:

(@)  Classification and measurement
The Group does not expect that the adoption of IFRS 9
will have a significant impact on the classification and
measurement of its financial assets. It expects to continue
measuring at fair value all financial assets currently held
at fair value.
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2.3

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

(b)

Impairment

IFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts that
are not accounted for at fair value through profit or loss
under IFRS 9, to be recorded based on an expected
credit loss model either on a twelve-month basis or
a lifetime basis. The Group will apply the simplified
approach and record lifetime expected losses that
are estimated based on the present values of all cash
shortfalls over the remaining life of all of its trade
receivables. Furthermore, the Group will apply the
general approach and record twelve-month expected
credit losses that are estimated based on the possible
default events on its other receivables within the next
twelve months. The Group has determined that, the
initial adoption of the standard will have no materia
impact on the Group’s financial performance and
position.

2.3

As at 31 December 2017
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B 5 S Ak B

As at 31 December 2017

2.3

R-F—tF+=-A=1+—H

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or
joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS
10 and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in December 2015
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

IFRS 15 and Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15, issued in May 2014, establishes a new five-step model
to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.
The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach
for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under IFRSs. Either
a full retrospective application or a modified retrospective
adoption is required on the initial application of the standard.
In April 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 15 to
address the implementation issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus agent
and licences of intellectual property, and transition. The
amendments are also intended to help ensure a more consistent
application when entities adopt IFRS 15 and decrease the
cost and complexity of applying the standard. The Group
will adopt IFRS 15 from 1 January 2018. During 2017, the
Group has performed a detailed assessment on the impact of
the adoption of IFRS 15. Based on the assessment, the Group
anticipated that the adoption of IFRS 15 in the future is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the recognition of sales of linen
yearns. However, there will be additional disclosures upon the
adoption of IFRS 15.
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As at 31 December 2017

2.3
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16, issued in January 2016, replaces IAS 17 Leases,
IFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains a
Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC-27
Evaluating the substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities
for most leases. The standard includes two elective recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-
term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the
lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use
asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in IAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the revaluation model is applied. The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the
lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will
be required to separately recognise the interest expense on
the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-
of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as
change in the lease term and change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from the accounting under IAS 17.
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. IFRS 16 requires lessees
and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under IAS
17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The Group
expects to adopt IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The Group
is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 16 upon adoption
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2.3

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

and is considering whether it will choose to take advantage
of the practical expedients available and which transition
approach and reliefs will be adopted. As disclosed in note 32
to the financial statements, at 31 December 2017, the Group
had future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in aggregate of approximately RMB6,143,000.
Upon adoption of IFRS 16, certain amounts included therein
may need to be recognised as new right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities. Further analysis, however, will be needed to
determine the amount of new rights of use assets and lease
liabilities to be recognised, including, but not limited to, any
amounts relating to leases of low-value assets and short term
leases, other practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and new
leases entered into before the date of adoption.

Amendments to 1AS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

Amendments to IAS 40, issued in December 2016, clarify
when an entity should transfer property, including property
under construction or development, into or out of investment
property. The amendments state that a change in use occurs
when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the change in
use. A mere change in management’s intentions for the use of
a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The
amendments should be applied prospectively to the changes in
use that occur on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the amendments. An
entity should reassess the classification of property held at the
date that it first applies the amendments and, if applicable,
reclassify property to reflect the conditions that exist at that
date. Retrospective application is only permitted if it is possible
without the use of hindsight. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2018. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group's financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2017

2.3

R-F—tF+=-A=1+—H

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

IFRIC 22, issued in December 2016, provides guidance on
how to determine the date of the transaction when applying
IAS 21 to the situation where an entity receives or pays
advance consideration in a foreign currency and recognises
a non-monetary asset or liability. The interpretation clarifies
that the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it) is the date on which
an entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset (such
as a prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such as deferred
income) arising from the payment or receipt of the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance of recognising the related item, the entity must
determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration. Entities may apply the interpretation
on a full retrospective basis or on a prospective basis, either
from the beginning of the reporting period in which the entity
first applies the interpretation or the beginning of the prior
reporting period presented as comparative information in
the financial statements of the reporting period in which the
entity first applies the interpretation. The Group expects to
adopt the interpretation prospectively from1 January 2018. The
interpretation is not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

IFRIC 23, issued in June 2017, addresses the accounting for
income taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments
involve uncertainty that affects the application of IAS 12 (often
referred to as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation
does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS
12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating
to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax
treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether
an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii)
the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of
tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity
determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an
entity considers changes in facts and circumstances. The
interpretation is to be applied retrospectively, either fully
retrospectively without the use of hindsight or retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of application as an adjustment to
the opening equity at the date of initial application, without the
restatement of comparative information. The Group expects to
adopt the interpretation from 1 January 2019. The interpretation
is not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

As at 31 December 2017
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's investments in the associates, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
is included as part of the Group's investments in associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control over the
joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit
or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person (i) has control or joint control over
the Group; (ii) has significant influence over the Group;
or (iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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As at 31 December 2017 RZ-ZE—+F+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies;

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same

group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third party and the
other entity is an associate of the third party;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the

Group.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Plant and buildings 4.5%
Machinery 9.0%
Office equipment 18.0%
Motor vehicles 22.5%

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business.

The Group’s investment properties are accounted for using
the cost model. The initial recognition and subsequent
measurement of land and buildings that are leased out are
accounted for using the same measurement and depreciation
methods as those of plant and buildings.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. The useful life of the intangible asset of
the Group is 20 years.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products not
exceeding five to seven years, commencing from the date when
the products are put into commercial production.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments and
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to
provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased
by the Group under operating leases are included in non-
current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases
are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentive
received from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit
or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit
or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presents as finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes do
not include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for
as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held
for trading or designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in other income and gains in the statement of
profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans or
administrative expenses for receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;
. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assessed them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred). The present value of
the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and
all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and loans
and borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include interest-bearing bank
loans, trade and notes payables, an amount due to an associate,
other payables and a dividend payable.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities is as
follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if,
and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risk.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges,
which is recognised in other comprehensive income and later
reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit
or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature
to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

J when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

J when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the statement of profit or
loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b)  rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms; and

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as consideration
for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial tree model, further details of which are
given in note 27 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Pension scheme

Pursuant to the relevant regulations, the Group has participated
in a local municipal government pension scheme (the
“Scheme”), whereby the Group is required to contribute a
certain percentage of the basic salaries of its employees to the
Scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of the
Group. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
Scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions under the
Scheme mentioned above. Contributions under the Scheme
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred.
There are no provisions under the Scheme whereby forfeited
contributions may be used to reduce future contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on retranslation of a non-

Non-monetary

monetary item is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item measured at fair
value (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

There is no significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements arising from the judgements,
apart from those involving estimations, made by management
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(@)

Impairment of non-current assets (other than goodwill)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs
of disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm'’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

The recoverable amounts of the Group has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by management.
The assumption that has the most significant impact on
the determination of the recoverable amount of its assets
is the discount rate. The pre-tax discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections as at 31 December 2017 was
210/0.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.
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As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(©)

Write-down of inventories

The Group’s inventories are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. The Group writes down
its inventories based on estimates of the realisable
value with reference to the age and conditions of the
inventories, together with the economic circumstances
on the marketability of such inventories. Inventories will
be reviewed annually for write-down, if appropriate.
The carrying amount of inventories at 31 December
2017 was RMB531,212,000 (2016: RMB509,591,000).
Further details are contained in note 18 to the financial
statements.

Impairment of trade and notes receivables

Impairment of trade and notes receivables is made
based on assessment of the recoverability of trade
and notes receivables. The identification of bad and
doubtful receivables requires management judgement
and estimates. Provision is made when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect the
debts. Where the actual outcome or expectation in future
is different from the original estimate, the differences will
impact the carrying value of the receivables and related
asset impairment charge or write-back in the period
in which the estimate has been changed. The carrying
amount of trade and notes receivables at 31 December
2017 was RMB310,215,000 (2016: RMB297,964,000).
Further details are contained in note 19 to the financial
statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(e)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycles. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives or management will write
off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned. The carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment at 31 December
2017 was RMB726,532,000 (2016: RMB601,537,000).
Further details are contained in note 13 to the financial
statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into one

single business unit that is primarily the manufacture and

sale of linen yarns. Management reviews the consolidated

results when making decisions about allocating resources

and assessing the performance of the Group. Accordingly, no

segment analysis is presented.

3.

As at 31 December 2017 K= Z

B 5 S AR B

—tFt=ZH=1+—H

B R HE R @

AT TREM @

() W WMEREKENIFERAEH
REEEEEETHEDE BE MK
ﬁﬂ’ﬂéﬁﬂ@%iﬂﬁ&*ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ%%

o ZIEMh R IR IR AR UM E R I R
H’J%% 5 K R R BB Al B
HAM B S 5 T E - I A] B B BT
BT MR E IR TR R E
MEERRE -ZAFRFHEZA
HETFEE  BREBIEINITEER
A5 0 8H B ORI _E B B Bl 3R SR R
MR REEE- R -_T—+F+—
A=+—H W% BEXRENE
masEAAREK726,532,0000T (=
—NE AR601,537,0007T) © EAth
IR I A HRAR M3 o

«(M/'\uﬁﬁﬂ

BHEER NEBECABK —EE %5
B EZE4AERBETDMY BEER
A EAEBMERIEL RE R EAEREK
REGEREMHES Bt AEEUES
55 EHH -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017 RZ-ZE—+F+=-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information
(@  Revenue from external customers
An analysis of the Group’s geographical information on
revenue attributed to the regions on the basis of customer
locations for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set
out in the following table:

Mainland China o [ K e
European Union X B
Non-European Union FEER BE B

(b)  Non-current assets
Since the principal non-current assets, other than
deferred tax assets, employed by the Group are located
in Mainland China, no further geographical information
for non-current assets is presented.

Information about major customers

No revenue amounting to 10 percent or more of the Group's
total revenue was derived from sales to a single customer for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).
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b 38 & B
@ REINBEFEA

TR AEEREE—

—tF

TZA=tT-HLEFER E}Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
o EE AN IEE R D

#r

Revenue from

external customers

RENBEFKA
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREEF T
387,135 329,853
251,705 251,724
385,122 274,666
1,023,962 856,243

b) FRBEE

HRAKREEANEZFRDEE
CREFIRE ERRIN IR B R
WA T2 5 IERE B EHE — TR

Ehte

FRIERFHNESN

RNEE-Z—+F+_A=+—HBItFE"
WERE -—FPETHHEERAMAEER
WAT0%S A E (ZF—RF &) o



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.
Revenue represents the sales value of linen yarns, net of sales
tax and deduction of any sales discounts and returns.

WA Hftl s RE=
WASRERMa HEEE  EMREHEH K
HORAL A S & 0 SR g -

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

Revenue
Sale of linen yarns

Other income

Bank interest income

Government grants

Foreign exchange gains, net

Gain from disposal of non-current assets
Others

Gains
Fair value gains on derivative instruments
— transactions not qualifying as hedges

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank loans
Less: interest capitalised

L'ON

H At Yo 28

RITHB WA
B 4 Bh
SINEE 15 215 FR
HEFRBEENSE
Hit

B

TETAMRREERST

WA Ht s REEs T

—TEEREHHRNIRS

RITEFON R

B AR R

2017 2016
—®-tF T AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
1,023,962 856,243
899 2,260

24,135 30,372

- 14,072

- 1,191

541 675

25,575 48,570

- 5,788

25,575 54,358

S 7% A

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T AREETTT
25,351 17,823
(7,639) (1,764)
17,712 16,059

Kingdom Holdings Limited $Z = RAR A 7
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As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BBA (BB BF
The Group’s (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBEBRBA (BER), &R, (G
(crediting): A) TOIRIEES L
2017 2016
—E—tF —TRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREBT T
Cost of inventories sold HEFEKA 907,694 704,365
Depreciation e 60,717 60,137
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments - 3t 8 & 78 < 5018 # §4 1,446 2,171
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hith #8712 & EE 35 536 573
Research and development (“R&D”) st ke FE ([A1E ) R
expenses 6,851 8,279
Minimum lease payments under operating A& & A EE T M & (KHEEHE -
leases:
Land and buildings T RIEF 1,745 1,900
Auditors’ remuneration Z SR N & 1,800 1,800
Employee benefit expense (including EERMNAX (BREFRESTR
directors’ and chief executive’s ABEEB)
remuneration):
Wages, salaries and other benefits TE FHekEMmER 157,354 152,381
Pension scheme contributions RIREEEIE R 10,435 9,803
Equity-settled share option expense AR 2 A5 E B IR A 2 195 376
167,984 162,560
Foreign exchange differences, net SN 2= BB FER 28,894 (14,072)
Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative TTETEMAREEEE(5%)
instruments
— transactions not qualifying as hedges TEERIEHPNR S 7,002 (5,788)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, H&E W% - ME L& #EEE BB
plant and equipment (5= 730 (1,191)
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment FERE (E0), EE
of inventories (4,540) 4,274
Reversal of impairment JEW E 5 BRSO EE D
of trade receivables (312) (677)
Finance costs BF 75 P AR 17,712 16,059
Bank interest income RITF B YA (899) (2,260)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B 5 S AR B

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8.

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Fees
Other emoluments:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Pension scheme contributions

we

Hin B -

e RMREYNGS
R FT IR

(@ Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

Mr. Yang Donghui*

Mr. Lau Ying Kit

Mr. Yan Jianmiao*
Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson

BERESE L
BIRGERE
Bt
BEELE

* On 30 May 2016, Mr. Yang Donghui retired as an
independent non-executive director upon approved by

shareholders of the Company and Mr. Yan Jianmiao was

appointed as an independent non-executive director in

place of Mr. Yang Donghui.

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year

(2016: Nil).

As at 31 December 2017

EERBETHRAEHHN

R-F—tF1+-_A=1+—H

FR-RELETRE-BH (QR1EH) &
383(1)@) (b)* (OMMIGEA K (AT (HEE
ERZEREN) F2BEBENES N ES

T A EFHBT :
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AREF T
437 527
3,700 3,453
111 111
4,248 4,091
(@ BIFEHITEE
FREBYIEAITEEZ B S
T
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
- 96
125 123
104 51
104 103
333 373

* REZFB—RFLA=FH BRE
SEEREBTHBTEER A
B ERIFEAR L AR R 1R 1
ZERBIIHHNTEE LRAE

RAESE -

FRLEERMNBIIFRITESTOEMD

e (ZF—RF &)

Kingdom Holdings Limited $Z = RAR A 7
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As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and

the chief executive

2017

Executive directors
Mr. Ren Weiming*
Mr. Shen Yueming
Mr. Zhang Hongwen
Ms. Shen Hong

Non-executive director
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert

2017 Annual Report —ZE—t+tF &

HITES
ERER A
8 LE
RBX AL
LB L

FRTES
BEEkE

8. EERBSITHAEHFMw

b) BITES FFPTESRESTH
AE
—ZE—+F
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
e EZRE  BAREHE
Be EMFI= R g0 Pk
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR¥Tn AR¥Tn AR¥ETxn
- 1,500 37 1,537
- 850 37 887
- 750 37 787
- 600 - 600
- 3,700 111 3,811
104 - - 104
104 - - 104
104 3,700 111 3,915



8.

(b)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVF'S 8. EERBEITHRAEHFM @
REMUNERATION (continued)
Executive directors, non-executive directors and b) BITES FFPTESRESTH
the chief executive (continued) YN=NT )
2016 AN S
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind  contributions  remuneration
Fe 2R RIKEFE
e B = HX B ek
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT AREFTT ARETRT
Executive directors HITER
Mr. Ren Weiming* R - 1,500 35 1,535
Mr. Shen Yueming N LbA - 850 35 885
Mr. Zhang Hongwen RBN KA - 750 35 785
Ms. Shen Hong LB - 353 6 359
- 3,453 111 3,564
Non-executive director FHITES
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert BAeERE 103 - - 103
Mr. Tse Mark Chau Shing** A B s o A 51 - - 51
154 - - 154
154

*%

Mr. Ren Weiming, who acts as an executive director of
the Company, is also the chief executive officer of the
Company.

On 30 May 2016, Mr. Tse Mark Chau Shing retired as a
non-executive director upon approved by shareholders of
the Company.

3,453 111 3,718

* ERARNFHITEENFHS L
£ FRAERRAITEAEE

o ROIF-RNFAA=1H #HEEF
BRI AR R AL TR FEIEH,
TTEE-

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z &K AR AT
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(2016: four) directors including the chief executive, details
of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details
of the remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2016:
one) highest paid employee who is neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

Salaries allowances and benefits in kind e R REYAG

Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIH R

The number of non-director and non-chief executive, highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
band is as follows:

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

LEEEHMES

FA LEREFHEERENA (ZF
—ARFOR)EF EREERSITERA
8 HHMFEEHN EXMES - FAR T
—HB(ZE—RF: —R)FARAEEFH&K
BITBABNREHMESNFMFEN
T

2017 2016
S s
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR ARBTT
1,298 1,283

16 15

1,314 1,298

FIMEN A THEMNFFES MIFRSITHA
BEMReHMER ARWMT

Number of employees

EEAH
2017 2016
—®—tF ST AF
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,00178 7L £1,500,0007 7T 1 1
1 1

During the year ended 31 December 2017, none of the
directors and chief executive, or any of the non-director and
non-chief executive, highest paid employees waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration (2016: Nil). None of the directors
and the chief executive, or any of the non-director and non-
chief executive, highest paid employees received any payment
from the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2016: Nil).

2017 Annual Report —ZE—t+tF &
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10.

INCOME TAX 10.
Major components of the Group’s income tax (credit)/expense
for the year are as follows:
Current — Mainland China B EA — A B K e
— Charge for the year —FAXH
Current — Hong Kong BN —& %
— Charge for the year —FAXH
— Overprovision in respect of prior years —BEFEBERE

Current — Italy
— Charge for the year
Deferred (note 17)

Total tax (credit)/charge for the year

(ii)

(iii)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BIHEA— &= A F
—FRZH
PEIE (Hiat17)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands or the
British Virgin Islands.

In accordance with the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law
which was approved and became effective on 1 January
2008, the provision for Mainland China current income
tax has been based on a statutory rate of 25% of the
assessable profits of the Company for the year except
for Zhaosu Jindi Flax Co., Ltd. (“Zhaosu Jindi”) and
Zhejiang Jinlainuo Fiber Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Jinlainuo”),
two indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group.
Zhaosu Jindi is engaged in the preliminary processing of
agriculture products and is exempted from PRC income
tax. Also, Zhejiang Jinlainuo obtained the High-new
Technology Certificate for the years from 2017 to 2020
and was entitled to a tax rate of 15%.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year.

As at 31 December 2017

B 5 S AR B

R-F—tF1+-_A=1+—H

Frss
REBRFRANER (ER) FHIEE
JHEWT :
2017 2016
—E—+t & —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
13,232 14,605
1,089 1,438
- (290)
187 106
(18,230) 6,727
(3,722) 22,586

FARE (ER), /X HEHE

(ii)

(iii)

REFASHEMNEBRELEERAINR
AR ARBHERMHESESNR
BRLESEH -

BRECBBIYN ST N\F—A—H
EE (REIDERMSEE) - REX
BERNHAFR SR B B RIBEF A A A A
B FE SR B 0m AR 25% A E TR Rt &
EREENREREEENBRRRG
BEMITMARAR ([FRES]) &
I SRAGHEERAR (A&
BRI -BES N ERERY]
INT 7% - BRRE R BIFTSE o 4
TE&RKFBADMEN - ZE—FE-F
CTEFREFENRIEMRE A
ZH15%FH K -

BAENEHRRFANTBELENME
JRE AR08 F JA16.5% 5 Gt R B 45

Kingdom Holdings Limited $Z = RAR A 7
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B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017

10.

INCOME TAX (continued)

(iv)

R-F—tF+=-A=1+—H

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Italy, the Group (iv)
is subject to tax at an income tax rate of 28.82%, which

comprises the Italy Corporate Income Tax at 24% and the

Italy Regional Income Tax at 4.82%.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries
are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate
is as follows:

BrBiET (B8R), S F

2 IE F E925%8 R 5t H B B IR
Effect of different tax rates MEZRTE
Overprovision in respect of prior years &1 F [Z B8 {5

(Loss)/profit before tax

Tax at an applicable tax rate of 25%

Income not subject to tax B R H) U

Tax losses utilised from prior years BEFEESANNIAEE
Tax losses not recognised RNIERE I E 18
Expenses not deductible for tax OLIEIE:0] 53

— AR BB R R AT R X
EH R ELE R BHIRE R

Tax credit arising from additional
deduction of R&D expenditures of
a PRC subsidiary

Deferred tax liability on withholding BT ZE £ MIETHIEE &
tax

Total (credit)/charge for the year FN () Xih@egn

2017 Annual Report —ZE—t+tF &

10. Fr8H w0

RIFBAMMRAFOEMR - NEE AR
28.82% MM R MG EPBREE
24%M R EHE B BN (B EFTSH K&
1R4.82% M R ENBAMMEEME
T o

BAR R T R B A BB MY B A R #Y
FAESEERAEERXAEERR
BR T AR A R IR R 3T AR E R
KA BT AR OHERNT

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREF T
(3,100) 92,615
(775) 23,154
(558) (3,725)

- (290)

(1,600) (2,920)
(327) -

- 247

3,122 3,612
(742) (921)
(2,842) 3,429
(3,722) 22,586




11.

12.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

DIVIDEND

Proposed final — HK2.0 cents
(2016: HK5.0 cents) per ordinary share

At a meeting of the board of directors held on 23 March
2018, the payment of a final dividend of HK2.0 cents per
ordinary share totalling approximately RMB10,527,000 was
recommended for the year ended 31 December 2017, which
is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share is based
on the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 629,678,000 (2016: 629,678,000) in issue
during the year, as adjusted to reflect the shares purchased by
the Trustee during the year.

The calculation of the diluted (loss)/earnings per share is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the
deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

11.

12.

B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

EZARHRE =R EK2.081
(ZZ—7RF 5.081)

[P
2017 2016
S s
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR ARBTT
10,527 28,162
10,527 28,162

RZE-NFZAZ+=ZABTHNESE L
FL 2R k¥EE T —tF+=
A=+—ALEFERBBRESR L0
AL A HEHAREE10,527,0007T 0 BEFA
NAIRRAEERRAFRE L& FA]
EE -

BRAAEERESRBFEEARLESR

(BE/) BR

BREAX (BB BADRES AR LR

RiEREEABEERN (BB, BFRE

B B 1T X 3 A N #E ¥ £1629,678,000%
—E— N4 :629,678,0000%) 5tE - WEE

HHABRARBRERNZTAMBEERD -

FREE (BR) /BN IREGARLR
Btz ts A ARG FRRNEE - S ERE
R E RN BT FAERHITE AR
2B (EFEEREARNMERERER)
AR B2 AP B R R ST T(E
KL A B B R BB R TRY B AN
g
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As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLETO 12. B AREEREREEAEEER

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (E58) BR w
(continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share BREAREE (BBR) BFOTERR
are based on: LI
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

(Loss)/earnings attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent used in
the basic earnings per share calculation

AR®T ARETT

Bt E B ERZF &
AR EBEIRERFEA
FE(R (K518) /%7 (3,132) 66,344

Number of shares

R EE
2017 2016
—E—tF S ANGS
000 ‘000
TK TR
Shares e
Weighted average number of ordinary RIS ESREARBNNFA
shares in issue during the year used in BT E AR INE T
the basic earnings per share calculation 629,678 629,678
Effect of dilution — weighted average e E L ERnE T
number of ordinary shares:
Share options BB rE 16,250 20,162
645,928* 649,840
* Because the diluted earnings per share amount is increased * HI G R BRI 2 18 I 57 R B8 &
when taking share options into account, the share options had BB HBRIEHFRNGRELXBFIAFTR
an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share for the HEE MR T REER T E M
year and were ignored in the calculation of diluted earnings BRIEARHE Ut - B IR BB 2 T A 2U5E o1
per share. Therefore, the diluted earnings per share amount FRF TR 13,132,000 K F A #
are based on the loss for the year of RMB3,132,000 and the 7T BRI F1920629,678, 00008515 »

weighted average number of ordinary shares of 629,678,000 in

issue during the year.
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B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ BERZE
31 December 2017 —E-tH+ZA=t—H
Plant and Office Motor Leasehold  Construction
buildings ~ Machinery ~ equipment vehicles  improvements  in progress Total
BER BENE
BEN #E  BOERRE nE % ERIRE )

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR ARETR ARBTR AR®TR ARETR AR%TR

At31 December 2016 and at RZE-REF
1 January 2017: TZAZT-HER
“E-tE-fA-H:
Cost R 277,023 599,553 62,799 10,335 16,371 127,446 1,093,527
Accumulated depreciation RithE (90,236) (352,653) (29,896) (8,102) (11,103) - (491,990)
Net carrying amount RS 186,787 246,900 32,903 2,233 5,268 127,446 601,537
At 1 January 2017, net of W_Z—+F-F—-8"
accumulated depreciation Nk 25T E 186,787 246,900 32,903 2,233 5,268 127,446 601,537
Additions e 3,987 7,692 3,674 294 3,408 170,340 189,395
Depreciation provided ERRERE
during the year (11,992) (36,482) 7,512) (640) (3,491) - (60,117)
Transfers 25 85,969 99,470 28,857 - - (214,296) -
Disposals & (1,322) (2,233) (731) (1) - - (4,287)
Exchange realignment EREE - 4 - - - - 4
At 31 December 2017, net of RZE—+F
accumulated depreciation TZA=t-R"
MK 23ITE 263,429 315,351 57,191 1,886 5,185 83,490 726,532
At 31 December 2017: RIZ—tF
ToA=t-8:
Cost KA 364,757 685,301 94,430 10,626 19,780 83,490 1,258,384
Accumulated depreciation 2HNE (101,328) (369,950) (37,239) (8,740) (14,595) - (531,852)
Net carrying amount REFHE 263,429 315,351 57,191 1,886 5,185 83,490 726,532

Kingdom Holdings Limited $Z = RAR A 7
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B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017

13.

R-F—tF+=-A=1+—H

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

31 December 2016

At 31 December 2015 and
at 1 January 2016:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2016, net of
accumulated depreciation
Additions
Transfer to investment properties
Depreciation provided
during the year
Transfers
Disposals
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2016, net of
accumulated depreciation
At31 December 2016:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

R-Z2-1%
TZAZ+-BR

“F-RE-A-8:

A
B

REFE

RZZ2-"$-A-8

NHEFHE
e
BARENE
ERERE

£
HE
AR

RZE-RE
+-F=1+-8"
MBZ:HE

RZE-—RE
T-A=+-8:
KA
2iiTE
FEFE

13. ME - BERRZRE @

—=

NFE+-A=+—H

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s property, plant and

Plant and Office Motor Leasehold  Construction

buildings Machinery equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total
B R HENE

BED BE WAERE AE E3 ERIRE @z
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT AREFT AR®Tn ARETR ARETT ARETR
281,947 590,767 57,722 9,897 13,866 42,688 997,087
(81,293) (333,171) (23,030) (7,114) (8,503) - (453,111)
200,654 257,596 34,692 2,783 5,363 42,888 543,976
200,654 257,596 34,692 2,783 5,363 42,868 543,976
2,597 599 1,808 438 1,710 122,122 129,274
(6,648) - - - - - (6,648)
(13,362) (35,713) (6,875) (988) (2,600) - (59,538)
6,855 26,254 3,282 - 795 (37,186) -
(3,309) (1,806) - - (378) (5,493)
- (30) 4) - - - (34)
186,787 246,900 32,903 2,233 5,268 127,446 601,537
277,023 599,553 62,799 10,335 16,371 127,446 1,093,527
(90,236) (352,653) (29,896) (8,102) (11,103) - (491,990)
186,787 246,900 32,903 2,233 5,268 127,446 601,537
WA FE25() R25(DFTE R F— £ F
FTZAZFT—H FXEEEREFENAR

equipment with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB191,736,000 (2016: RMB264,668,000) were pledged to
secure bank loans granted to the Group as set out in notes 25(i)

and 25(ii).

2017 Annual Report —ZE—t+tF &

#191,736,000L (ZZ — R F : AR
264,668,00070) W - MEMEHEE TE
o EAREBERBITERNER
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B 5 S AR B

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Carrying amount at 1 January
Reclassification from property,
plant and equipment

FAWERE

Depreciation provided during the year

Carrying amount at 31 December

The Group's investment properties are commercial properties
in Shanghai and Jiaxing, the PRC. The directors of the
Company have determined that the investment properties
consist of one class of asset, i.e., commercial, based on the
nature, characteristics and risks of the property. The Group’s
investment properties were revalued on 31 December 2017
based on valuations performed by Haiyan Zhonglian Asset
Assessment Limited Corporation, independent professionally
qualified valuers, at RMB20,854,000. Each year, the Group’s
property manager and the chief financial officer decide,
after approval from the audit committee, to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of
the Group’s investment properties. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 31(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2017

14. BEYZE

RN—A—B®MKRESR
BYE BEEREEHODE

R-F—tF1+-_A=1+—H

RT-A=1t—HNEEETH

2017 2016
S s
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR ARBTT
8,129 2,080

- 6,648

(600) (599)
7,529 8,129

NEEBNREMEDNATER LS K=
NERME-ARARESRIBEREDNED
ME FERER BEREYEHR—BE
EMR - BEAEN - RZE—+tF+=A
=t+—H AEEREBIEESERMHE
EEEREEETHERARFTETHHE
I BAEEOREMESTHEAAR
#20,854,00070 ° FF - AN E B W) FE &8
M BREERSERZ NI AR &8
EXET—RBINEHEMEEHANEBHE
BEYEEITINEEE - BB IEERIETIS A
HBE BEUVUREREFEEKE.

REMEREEMENETE =77 B~
FBRA G RERMEI (@ -
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B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REVEm
Fair value hierarchy PABESREE
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRERTEEREMENAALBENES
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties: ARBRE -

Quoted
prices in
active
markets
RER™ S
MERE
(Level 1)
(%5—18)
RMB’000
AR%TR

REMRAAEENE:
[GliEAES -

Recurring fair value measurement for:
Commercial properties

RANTHEAR-E

Quoted

prices in

active

markets

RE B T5

HO ¥R fE

(Level 1)

(F—8)

RMB’000

ARETT

Recurring fair value measurement for: &R A (BERE:
Commercial properties

140
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[GlGEZES -

Fair value measurement as at

31 December 2017 using
RANTHAR=Z2-tF+=A=+—-H

BETHAREETE
Significant Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs
EXAER EXTAHE
BWAE AR
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(5=8) (=) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE AR®TR AR®Txn
- 20,854 20,854
Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2016 using
—RNFTZA=t—H
BT AAEETE
Significant Significant
observable  unobservable
inputs inputs
EXRATEE EATIER
BAE BAE
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B52FE) (B=@) B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFT AREBTT
- 21,368 21,368
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14.
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers

into or out of Level 3. (2016: Nil)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

REWE w0

AREBEEEZERESE @

FR AREBENEESF BRF_EZH

BEEE fTEEAE-_EXEE_EEL
TE-RFE) o

AT REENELEMBNEETDERTE
WAERBE

Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
fEES% BERFEEGAE SEENMETIHH
2017 2016
—B—tF —TRF
Shanghai Commercial Discounted cash flow  Estimated rental value RMB222 RMB332
Property | method (per sq. m. and per month)
LEEmRAmE ReRENHEL fEst e EE ARM¥222t AR¥3327T
(B¥HAREA)

Rent growth (p.a.) 3%-5% 3%-5%
MagR (8F) 3%ZE5% 3%%5%
Long term vacancy rate Nil Nil
RHz=EX B
Discount rate 4.25% 5.5%
R = 4.25% 5.5%

Kingdom Holdings Limited $Z = RAR A 7
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B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Valuation techniques

fEERE

Shanghai Commercial Discounted cash flow

Property I method
LEEmAmE ReRBINBTX

Jiaxing Commercial Discounted cash flow

Property method
REFAYE REREWBRIE

2017 Annual Report —ZE—t+tF &

14. REVE
PRAEBEEREE @

Significant unobservable inputs

BEAFUBEGAE

Estimated rental value
(per sq. m. and per month)
st S EE
(BF¥HAEEA)
Rent growth (p.a.)
HeRRE (8F)
Long term vacancy rate
REAZEEX
Discount rate

Tk

Estimated rental value
(per sq. m. and per month)
HErESEE
(B FARREAH)
Rent growth (p.a.)
HeER (§4)
Long term vacancy rate
REIZEE X
Discount rate

IR

Range or weighted average
SEERMEFIIH
2017 2016
—E-tF —T-RF
RMB235 RMB339
AR®235%T  AR®3397T
3%-5% 3%-5%
3%Z5% 3%ZE5%
Nil Nil
4.25% 5.5%
4.25% 5.5%
2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
RMB63 RMB54
AR®63T AR®B547T
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
6.90% 5.25%
6.90% 5.25%
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of
ownership over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal
value. This method involves the projection of a series of cash
flows on a property interest. A market-derived discount rate
is applied to the projected cash flow in order to establish the
present value of the income stream associated with the asset.
The exit yield is normally separately determined and differs
from the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of
inflows and outflows are determined by events such as rent
reviews, lease renewal and related reletting, redevelopment
or refurbishment. The appropriate duration is driven by market
behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of property. The
periodic cash flow is estimated as gross income less vacancy,
non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease incentives,
maintenance costs, agent and commission costs and other
operating and management expenses. The series of periodic
net operating income, along with an estimate of the terminal
value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then
discounted.

B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017 RZ-ZE—+#F+=-HA=+—H

14. BEYWE w

AAREBEZSRERE @
RERREWNE L AABEDKBEE
WEmHNEEEERENNEREE (B
REEBEEICOREE) NRZETMHE &
/f/ﬁ&if%%*g E’] $$iﬁﬁ/m§ﬁ’ﬁ§
Bl B ITEMITIREEANBARSRE
Lxﬁﬁﬁiéﬁ%é?ﬁfﬁmuk SMEIRE R
WaBEeERmAEAETRRITIAE.

HeRENBFERERRAMT LN AE
Ry BRAENES R  HOEME REEE
B BRI EEMRE - BENHER

BIXMI5TR (BMERRNSEL)FE - F

HE e RERAWRENH/REE - A ikE H
X WERIER HERE RKEER KB
FAeBRREMCENERBRAMGE Z—
AR TE R S W E R R - R TR R A TEORI ER
BRERNEREEATSE SETHR-

Kingdom Holdings Limited $Z = RAR A 7
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B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

Cost:
At beginning of year
Additions

At end of year

Accumulated amortisation:
At beginning of year
Charge for the year

At end of year

Carrying amount at end of year
Current portion included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Non-current portion

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s prepaid land lease
payments with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB42,843,000 (2016: RMB47,427,000) were pledged to
secure bank loans granted to the Group as set out in notes 25(i)

and 25(ii).

Lease prepayments represent costs paid to the PRC land bureau
for obtaining land use rights in respect of land located in
Mainland China with a lease period of 50 years when granted.

2017 Annual Report —ZE—t+tF &

15. THEEEARIE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETF T
R
F 80,500 63,806
NE - 16,694
FR 80,500 80,500
Rt
F 4] (12,585) (10,414)
FNEE (1,446) 2,171
FR (14,031) (12,585)
FREMEE 66,469 67,915
HAEMFBER
H b fE R IE R R B 2D (1,632) 1,632)
EREE D 64,837 66,283
AN A 25() R25(NATE - R —+ 4

T+ AZ+—H AEEEEIFEHA
R#42,843,000 (ZZE—R"F . ARK
47,427,00070) W T EFENHIEE &

o ERREBERRITERNER-

o ERENHEEHR /505 -

MEIE( FIRLE R B £ 3 & 12 /S AR
SO B R BE ) 30 ) T RO



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. HMWEREEE

31 December 2017

—E-tF+-A=t+—H

Certified
emission rights
8 55 Bk hh A
RMB’000
AR¥T T
At 1 January 2017, net of accumulated amortisation R-ZE—+F—H—8"
kR 25 8,137
Additions NE _
Disposal & (1,767)
Amortisation provided during the year FRHERE (536)
At 31 December 2017, net of accumulated amortisation RZ_E—+tF+_A=+—H"
kR 25t 5,834
At 31 December 2017: RZE—+tF+ZA=+—8:
Cost BN 9,956
Accumulated amortisation Rt 4,122)
Net carrying amount BREFRE 5,834
31 December 2016 —E-RE+=ZA=+—H
Certified
emission rights
8 55 B ph R
RMB’000
ARBEF T
At 1 January 2016, net of accumulated amortisation R-ZZE—R"F—H—A8"
B 2EHE 9,083
Additions NE 759
Disposal H & (1,132)
Amortisation provided during the year FREEEE (573)
At 31 December 2016, net of accumulated amortisation RZE—RF+=ZA=+—8"
Nk 25 8,137
At 31 December 2016: RZE—RFET+_A=+—8:
Cost B 11,723
Accumulated amortisation Rt (3,586)
Net carrying amount BREFRR 8,137

Kingdom Holdings Limited $Z = RAR A 7
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B 5 S Ak B

As at 31 December 2017 R -ZE—+F+_-_HA=+—H

17. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities of the

Group during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:

At1 January 2016 RZZ-R"E-A-H
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to ERGAAHEER/
the consolidated statement of (BAGERRNR)

profit or loss during the year (note 10) ~ FOEIEFE (Fi5£10)

At 31 December 2016 and RIZ-RETZAZT-HER
1 January 2017 —T-+§-A-H
Deferred tax creditec/(charged) to ERFARIHERR/
the consolidated statement of (BARBEERNR)

profit o loss during the year (note 10)  #JEIERE (izF10)

At 31 December 2017 RZE—tE+ZA=+-H

2017 Annual Report —ZE—t+F &3]

17. EEBIR
AEBRLEHRAEERBBERNFANEE N
o
EEHEEE:
Depreciation  Loss available Fair value
inexcess  for offsetting loss on
Allowance Provision  Elimination of of related ~ against future derivative
for doubtful for unrealised  depreciation taxable financial
Accruals debts  inventories profits allowance profit  instruments Total
RERY LS {3
it BBNRE A&RB  ERIAN
BRER REEE FEBH  AEREN  BENEE  ENZER AMEERE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARMTRT ARMTRT ARETE ARBTR ARETr ARETR ARETR
2,864 468 917 731 600 - - 5,580
(565) (142) 255 489 19 - 58 114
2,299 326 1172 1,220 619 - 58 5,694
(287) (35) (279) (196) 3,786 7,584 1,692 12,265
2,012 291 893 1,024 4,405 7,584 1,750 17,959




Notes to Financial Statements

17. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Bt 5 S R B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

17. EZEHIE m)

Deferred tax liabilities: EEBHEEE:
Withholding
tax on Fair value Depreciation
undistributed gains on allowance
profits of the derivative in excess
Mainland China financial Unrealised of related
subsidiaries instruments exchange gain depreciation Total
hE AR
WEAFE fiE TERE
RO EF SRIAH RER BHABTE
HENR  AAEESE B 5 i as NEH CHY
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
At 1 January 2016 RZZ-R"E-A—H 10216 (565) - 2,182 11,833
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the R E A HHEZE
consolidated statement of profit or M/ (GEAAH
loss during the year (note 70) Bak) METHA
(Hzt10) 3,429 2,070 - 1,342 6,841
At 31 December 2016 and RZZ—RE
1 January 2017 TZA=+-Bk
—T—+5—-R—H 13,645 1,505 - 3,524 18,674
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to FREAMHERR
the consolidated statement of Mk (GEAEH
profit or loss during the year (note 10)  B& R ) KIEILFIE
(Brztio) 6,595) (1,505) 878 1,257 (5,965)
At 31 December 2017 RZF—tF+_A
=t-AR 7,050 - 878 4,781 12,709

RIE CEERMABHER) - EPBEIAERAMNK

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings generated after 31 December 2007.

THSMNERE R ERINEREETIRHRE
ARUI0%M BN - Z R EB —FTFT\F
—A-BREM WEAR-ZTLF+-
A=t—RRERELNRT -

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z = RAR A 7
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B 5 S Ak B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

17. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities: (continued)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred
tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax of the Group as at 31 December 2017 and 2016
relates to the following:

Deferred tax assets arising from:

— Allowance for doubtful debts —REREE

— Provision for inventories —TFEEE

— Elimination of unrealised profits — B AR B IR 5 A

— Accruals —JERE R

— Fair value losses on derivative —TEERmIAN
financial instruments AABEEBR

— Depreciation in excess of related —EBHAR
depreciation allowance TERBNHTR

— Losses available for offsetting against ~ —FLAIKE5 H &
future taxable profit R N 2 B 1R

2017 Annual Report —ZE—t+tH &

17.

EEBIE (@)
EEREBEEE: w0

RIERVZR ETEERAEEEREED
KA B R NG - RIEMEE2H 2
B AEENRERIEZSHRONMT

AEBR-_ZE—FR-_T—"F+=-A
—T—HBMRERIBER TS SIERRE:

31 December

TR RELRECHABE

31 December

2017 2016
—g—+tf e i
+=A=+-B +-A=t+-~
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
291 326

893 1,172

1,024 1,220
2,012 2,299
1,750 58
4,405 619
7,584 -
17,959 5,694




17. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 S R B

As at 31 December 2017

17. EZEHIE m)

31 December

R-F—tF+=-A=1+—H

31 December

2017 2016
—E—+EF —E—REF
+=—A=+—8H +-—A=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR ARETF T
Deferred tax liabilities arising from: THBEELRRERIASE:
— Withholding tax on undistributed profits — & B AFERT B A &
of Mainland China subsidiaries Rk FFTEEL (7,050) (13,645)
— Depreciation allowance in excess of —ERBBRHARITE
related depreciation et (4,781) (3,524)
— Fair value gains on derivative financial —#T4&& @ T AH
instruments ARBEEEE - (1,505)
— Unrealised exchange gain in Italy —BARAARBIRE K Wz (878) -
(12,709) (18,674)
Deferred tax, net FEIER IR F 58 5,250 (12,980)
Reflected in the consolidated statement of 74 G B # #A S0 5% P9 S Bk -
financial position:
— Deferred tax assets —BERIEEE 14,640 3,304
— Deferred tax liabilities —EERIEEE (9,390) (16,284)

As at 31 December 2017, other than the amount recognised
in the consolidated financial statements, deferred tax has not
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute such unremitted earnings in
the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately RMB340,350,000 at 31
December 2017 (2016: RMB340,350,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

RN_B—+E+_A=+—H0 B&aHTB
WMEABRNSBIN AEEBTEREES
Bl R FERK S RIMT B A B B S TE N B K B
BT AT TR R RRIE R - EF
RE ZEWNBRARINAERERT KA
DIRZERELAFN RZT—tF+=A
=+—H ERPEKEMNBARNKEES
I E I EREEH B A ENEREE
RS KL A ARY340,350,0000T (=F
— 785+ AR#%340,350,0007T) °

R A 1) B BB A+ BB I 48 B 7 P S AR A
BER -

Kingdom Holdings Limited $Z = RAR Q7
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B 5 S R B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

18. INVENTORIES

Raw materials JRH
Work in progress &
Finished goods SR

As at 31 December 2017, inventories with a carrying amount
of RMB40,000,000 (2016: RMB40,000,000) were pledged to
secure bank loans granted to the Group as set out in note 25(i).

19. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables U E 5 ERR
Notes receivable R EE
Impairment B

150 2017 Annual Report =8 —+ £ F

18. F&
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
+=ZBA=+—H +-—A=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARETF T
326,175 205,594
37,995 39,235
167,042 264,762
531,212 509,591

WA 25T E R —+F+ = A
—+—H " RA®%EAARE40,000,0007T
—ZT—RF: AR40,000,0007T) NIFE
ETER EAEASBERBITERNIE
Re

19. EWEZRIAKEWREE

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
+=ZBA=+—H +=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBTT
194,552 198,858
116,589 100,344

(926) (1,238)

310,215 297,964




19.

Notes to Financial Statements

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)
Customers are normally granted credit terms ranging from
30 days to 150 days depending on the creditworthiness of
the individual customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

The Group’s notes receivable were all aged within six months
and were neither past due nor impaired.

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net
of provisions, is as follows:

Within T month —EARN

1 to 2 months —ERAEMEA
2 to 3 months A E A ==& A
Over 3 months =fEAE

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+#+-H=+—H

19. EWESRANREWERE @

EP—REETEEH0OXREISOR BT
BRI P HEEME - ARE N RIFEBR
2 1 R W [m] 0 FE MR IR - I 5 15 B ) AP
R EERBRERE - SRERETEHE
Bl H A £R - PR U B BRI 5T 8o

AEBNEREBEREDRNEAR L&
B R TR R E -

RBMEMR AEENREEZERRIZER
B BB BRI T

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
+=ZA=+—H +-A=+—8€
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARB TR AREF T
74,737 45,440

59,856 86,576

40,177 33,084

18,856 32,520

193,626 197,620

Kingdom Holdings Limited $Z = RAR Q7
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B 5 S Ak B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

19. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. ERESZRIAREVEE @
The movements in the provision for impairment of trade RN E ZRFORERBEEB T

receivables are as follows:

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
t=ZA=+—8H +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBT T
At 1 January ®n—H—H 1,238 1,915
Impairment losses accrued ZERERRE 106 325
Impairment losses reversed BEE RSO 418) (1,002)
926 1,238
Included in the above provision for impairment of trade bt W E 5 ERFURERE 2 I ERRER
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade e E 5 BR R B s A R#926,0007T (=&
receivables of RMB926,000 (2016: RMBT1,238,000) with a —7RF: AR ¥1,238,0007T) - BEE R R E
carrying amount before provision of RMB1,214,000 (2016: SEABARET,214,0007T (ZE—RFE: A
RMB2,061,000). R #2,061,0007T) °
The impaired trade receivables relate to customers that were ERERKE 5 RN A BRENE P
in financial difficulties and only a portion of the receivables is B FAEHE AT [C R 5 e YRR IE ©
expected to be recovered.
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are not I FEARE Bl % 5= 8818 AR E R B U E 5 BR TR
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as FRECOATINT -
follows:
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
t=A=+—-H +ZA=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT
Neither past due nor impaired B A B R R (E 176,783 131,629
Less than 1 month past due BE—EARN 9,545 31,234
1 to 3 months past due BE—EAE=1{EA 4,672 31,429
Over 3 months past due BER=1E A A £ 2,338 2,505
193,338 196,797
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Notes to Financial Statements

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

The carrying amount of the trade and notes receivables
approximates to their fair value due to their short term maturity.

Notes receivable that are not derecognised in their
entirety

At 31 December 2017, the Group endorsed certain notes
receivable accepted by banks in the PRC (the “Endorsed
Notes”) with a carrying amount of RMB9,831,000 (31
December 2016: RMB10,374,000) to certain of its suppliers
in order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers (the
“Endorsement”). In the opinion of the directors, the Group
has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which include
default risks relating to these Endorsed Notes, and accordingly,
it continued to recognise the full carrying amounts of the
Endorsed Notes and the associated trade payables settled.
Subsequent to the endorsement, the Group does not retain any
rights on the use of the Endorsed Notes, including sale, transfer
or pledge of the Endorsed Notes to any other third parties. The
aggregate carrying amount of the trade payables settled by
the Endorsed Notes to which the suppliers have recourse was
RMB9,831,000 as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016:
RMB10,374,000).

19.

Bt 5 S R B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

FEWESRAREREE @
BE & e H TR B R RN IB B R 2 RN R R
FER ZEBPIEHLIBENESL -

EBHMERBENEUKRIARS LB LE
FAER ZFEFREASEERIINBHERC
BoRBAEER ARREZRAERY
ZEEHRERERE DAEEEEERE
B FEBIDERB AR A E -

BRI BEKE SRR R EEER
EORESEEEAEBERES-

WHEEHRULEINERRE

N_B—trF+-_A=+—H AEERH
ATHEREESETHTRREMNRITEANE
WEE ([EEEER])  FASEAARE
9,831,000t (ZE—ARF+=-_A=+—8:
AR ¥10,374,0007T) * LAKE S BT 5% S 1
EENENEZER([BE]) EFRA-
AEBNRBERER REH  BIEEHEZ
LEREEZEMNEORE WA EEEER
REBEEZEREBCEERENESER
HNEHEESE REE%  AEETER
BARMEREEEZRNESN  BiEREM
EME=NE #EEIERCEERE-
D Em A BRENEESEZRETNE
NESEFN _ZE—+tF+-A=1+—HH
IREAA%E A ARE9,831,0007T (ZZF—7R4F
+=A=+—H: AR¥10,374,0007T) °
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B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017

19.

20.

R-F—tF+=-A=1+—H

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes receivable that are derecognised in their entirety
At 31 December 2017, the Group endorsed certain notes
receivable accepted by banks in the PRC (the “Derecognised
Notes”) to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade
payables due to such suppliers with a carrying amount
in aggregate of RMB11,384,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB8,378,000). The Derecognised Notes had a maturity of one
to six months at the end of the reporting period. In accordance
with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders
of the Endorsed Notes have a right of recourse against the
Group if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”).
In the opinion of the directors, the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised
Notes. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying
amounts of the Derecognised Notes and the associated trade
payables. The maximum exposure to loss from the Group's
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Notes and the
undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Derecognised
Notes is equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the
directors, the fair values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement
in the Derecognised Notes are not significant.

The Group has not recognised any gain or loss on the date
of transfer of the Derecognised Notes in 2017 (2016: Nil).
No gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing
Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively. The
Endorsement has been made evenly throughout the year.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

B
R—FREH®

T HE RN KR
e N E b e IR

Prepayments

Prepaid land lease payment due
within one year

Deposits and other receivables

2017 Annual Report —ZE—t+tF &3

19.

20.

FREZSRAKREVEE @
PEHARILBIANERERE
R_E—+F+_A=+—H A&EEMR
ERTHERSSETHREMNRTER
MERER ([RIEEREE])  RE4£%E
AAR11,384,000T (ZZE—XR"F+=A
=+—H: AR¥8,378,0007T) ' A& B E
NZERERNENEZERN - KILERE
EHRFEHRET —2NE A AR R IE
FRERERL KEEREMNEEAGERSP
BEMIRTENNEAEERDER ([HE
2H]|) - EERA AEECEBEBALL
HREBEMNE R DR RE R EiL - &
SEERIBRRIERAZRAEEENE
SEFNEBRMES T - AEEFEIHLK
IFEREE R IEOZE R L EREERA AR,
BB RENESBLRERIEBSENEHEER
TR-EEFRA AEBERFESLMEK EHER
ZENAABELFEK

KBt AEEDRAEE LR
FRYARREASRAER (X
£ m)  REEREN S REHI B RS E
SEMEGRRAIR - HERENTY
it o

RN fE R EMERKE

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
+=—HA=+—8H +=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT
8,978 4,642

1,632 1,632

58,040 38,161
68,650 44,435




Notes to Financial Statements

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-bearing

21.

and have no fixed terms of repayment.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to

receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

The carrying amount of prepayments, deposits and other

receivables approximates to their fair value due to their short

term maturity.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Liabilities)/Assets: (BfE) AE:
Foreign currency forward HNERHIA A
contracts — current — BN ER

Cross-currency swap

1 [ R4 1

The Group uses forward currency contracts to manage some
of its foreign currency transaction exposures. These currency
forward contracts are not designated as cash flows, fair value
or net investment hedges and are entered into for periods
consistent with foreign currency transaction exposures, generally
from one to twelve months. These contracts will mature within
2018.

In 2017, the Group entered into cross-currency swap
agreements with a bank to swap the USD and the relevant
interest payments into RMB to manage the interest rate and
currency risks. These contracts will mature within 2018.

The derivatives are measured at fair value as at 31 December

2017.

Bt 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+#+-H=+—H

20. AR -#HEREMEWRRE @

bt R A AR AT B M B EE
5o

bt EERERE B IR OB (B o FT A Lt A i
H) S R A B BT HA NP SR HE R RO 8% ) R UK SRR
B

HREHARIE - BIENK R REME
WRIEH R e REE AR EERS -

21, fTE€®mIT A
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE-RF
+=B=+—H +—-_RA=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BraF AREF T ARETF T
(555) 5,788
(6,447) -
(7,002) 5,788

(i) AEECAEEERSOBEEERSINE
ZHRERK - ZEEEEREOREERRS
ME AABEIFHREL D MM
RESNEZ AR - (—RA—ET=
BA) - ZEFEHNBN T NFREIH-

(i) M-E—tF KNEEE-FRITHETR
BEE 3 ) R th o - BB SR I AR R B
FIBRIBBANRE - AEIRRF K E R E
e ZEEHNPHN - — \FEIH-
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As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

DEPOSITS

Cash and bank balances
Time deposits

Less: Pledged deposits for letter of credits

Pledged deposits for forward contracts

Cash and cash equivalents

Denominated in RMB
Denominated in HK$
Denominated in EUR
Denominated in USD
Denominated in other currencies

Cash and bank balances

22.

BERBEESEYUARTERER

31 December

31 December

2017 2016
—ZE—+F —E—RF

+=HA=+—H +=—A=+—8

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARETIT

H& RIBITHH 224,138 353,866
FEHFE® - _
224,138 353,866

B EBLERRERATER (50,187) (68,338)
ERHAAOEFNTR (127) (6,017)
RekReFED 173,824 279,511
A RESE 82,819 206,545
OB TTEHE 2,483 8,242
AR TEHE 16,412 14,165
LAZETTEME 121,813 124,609
LAE th & ETE 611 305
HeRREEEY 224,138 353,866

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control

Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily

bank deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits

are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of

default.

2017 Annual Report —ZE—t+F &3]
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24.

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 S R B

As at 31 December 2017 RZ-ZE—+#F+=-HA=+—H

TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES 23. BRNESZRIRRENRE
An ageing analysis of the trade and notes payables as at 31 R-TE—tF+-A=1+—8 =HRIH
December 2017, based on the payment due date, is as follows: Ao BOENE SRR EERE DT

UM

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
+t=A=+—8H +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREF T
Due within 1 month or on demand — B A AR BN ERKEER 115,400 19,813
Due after T month but within 3 months ~ —1{& 3 LA1& 18 =1{& A A 2| &5 62,361 108,644
Due after 3 months but within 6 months = 1{& 3 LA & 18718 A A 2| &5 12,022 1,032
189,783 129,489

The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-bearing.
The carrying amount of trade and notes payables at the end of
each reporting period approximates to their fair value due to
their short term maturity.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Advances from customers B
Accruals JBIREA
Other payables H A FE A 5K

The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-bearing.
The carrying amount of other payables and accruals at the end
of each reporting period approximates to their fair value due to
their short term maturity.

24.

EHRABEEBETRFE RS WEH

K mmg%WU% RN E 5 RN E
NEBNEReREE N BERS -

HttESGREREREA

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—REF

+=—A=+—H +=-—A=+—8H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARBTT

6,595 5,188

3,152 2,708

84,232 42,418

93,979 50,314

ERABEEBERTRFE RS WMEH

X m#a%mﬂ% WE%?H%E&E

REANEHSEEEAAEERS
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As at 31 December 2017

25.

Current
Secured bank loans

Unsecured bank loans
Subtotal

Non-current

Secured bank loans

Total

Analysed into:

Bank loans repayable:
Within one year

In the second year

R-F—tF+=-A=1+—H

8
BRARTEIR
EEMBTER
Pt

#03

BERRTER
At

In the third to fifth years, inclusive

2017 Annual Report —ZE—t+F &3]

DT

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

Effective
interest rate
(%)
BERAI=E
(%)

1.49 - 4,57

2.08-4.70

4.28

FEERRITEN

—FR
FF

F-E2FLF (BREEMF)

25.

2017

—B-t#

Maturity

L

2018

2018

2021

SFREBITHEE

Effective

interest rate

RMB’000 (%)
BBME

AR¥F R (%)

334,221  2.50-3.92

185,340 0.30-4.44

519,561

75,600 4.28

595,161

31 December

2016
—NE

Maturity ~ RMB'000
HH ARETE
2017 304,911
2017 226,192

531,103
2021 100,800
631,903

31 December

2017 2016
—E—tF A
t=RA=+—-8B +t=ZA=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT
519,561 531,103
25,200 25,200

50,400 75,600
595,161 631,903




25.

Notes to Financial Statements

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

(continued)

Notes:

(i) As at 31 December 2017, the current interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a carrying amount of RMB334,221,000 were
secured by certain property, plant and equipment, prepaid
land lease payments, and inventories with carrying amounts of
RMB112,775,000 (2016: RMB207,598,000), RMB27,421,000
(2016: RMB31,685,000) and RMB40,000,000 (2016:
RMB40,000,000), respectively.

(i) As at 31 December 2017, the non-current interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a carrying amount of RMB75,600,000 were
secured by certain property, plant and equipment and prepaid
land lease payments of the Group with carrying amounts of
RMB78,961,000 (2016: RMB57,070,000) and RMB15,422,000
(2016: RMB15,742,000), respectively.

The carrying amount of the current interest-bearing bank loans
of the Group approximates to their fair value due to their short
term maturity.

The fair values of the non-current interest-bearing bank
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
The Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing
bank borrowings as at 31 December 2017 was assessed to
be insignificant. Management has assessed that the carrying
amount of the non-current interest-bearing bank loans of the
Group approximates to the fair value due to their floating
interest rate.

Bt 5 S R B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

STEBITEE @
et

(i) N-ZEBE—+F+-_A=+—H0 @S
A ARM334,221,0007T 89 BN HR &t &
HITEEUASEEEASESNAAR
#112,775,0007C (Z T —NE: AR
207,598,0007t) * AR #27,421,0007T

ZE—NF: AR®31,685,0007T) & A
R #40,000,0007T (ZZT —RF: AR
40,000,0007T) B & T % - W5 KR -
T AR E A RIE R AT B AEE R o

i) NZEB—+F+_A=+—H FEEL2HE
A ANR#75,600,0007T H) FEBD B ET B8R 1T
BEURA2ES B AAR78,961,000
T (ZZF—XF: AR¥57,070,0007T) &
AREE15,422,0007C (ZZ—RF: AR
15,742,00070) MASEEE TWE  BE &
BB R LA ETE A FRIB R -

mRREHARE RAKEA S BR1TE
RORESHEEEAREBERS -

FEHIE B IRTTREN A EBRERNA
BEUGK  EERRLFSGFHN T AN
BITMEFRBHRRRRSREAE - R =
E—tFt+-_A=1+—B AEEAXRFH
BRITEENTENRBRKEFE/LTE
R REE BTG AEBEMIFRHE R
RITERANDFTBN RS HERRAS
MEAERAAEEMRS-
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As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. KA
Authorised: EIE

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

—E—tF —E-RE
+=-B=+-—H +ZA=1+—8
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
RHEE k-] W1 &1 B ik
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET THET
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(RERZ) (BRE®R) (&%) (&%)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 0.0 T E B 3,000,000,000 30,000  3,000,000,000 30,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
31 December 2017 31 December 2016
ZE-tF+ZAZ+-H “E-RETZA=ZT-H
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
RO#E EA L ! Eixc
HK$'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
equivalent HK$'000 equivalent
TExr AR¥TR FEr ARETR
(%) (%6)
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(BE%) (B&#®) (BER) (BER)
At the beginning and the end REDRER
629,678,000 6,297 6,329 629,678,000 6,297 6,329

of the year

160
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Notes to Financial Statements

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company’s directors, including independent non-executive
directors, other employees, suppliers, customers, agents,
partners or advisers of or contractors of the Group in the
Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on 15
November 2006 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$0.01 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a vesting period of one to three
years and ends on a date which is not later than four years from
the date of offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date
of offer of the share options;(ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of the share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

27.

Bt 5 S R B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

BB IR T &

ARrRE —BREEEE ([F181)) - R
UAKEEBAFEHERMNAERSEA
REUHB L EEMR FENAERSEA
BREALRAER (BERBUIFNTESR) R
BERARAMBARNASEEMES
HER &P RIE - B B gREg-
AEE—ETAF+ A +RBEREN KR
FWECHHERT  BRIK BZ AR +FH
R o

B8RS EAR B RITRBREN R
SHE  BERITERESR AR REMA
REEETRMDI10% - RIFFHEINERA
AR EANERNBERENA TRTHRS
BHEE - PMEE+ =@ A BHEAT A8
ARBREAREDETRON1% K
HRIB UL IR A B A R BRI R A& it
JfE ©

REBRENZENNZ2 B HEA218R
HARASNEBERES H0.01EBTER -
BROWBRENTTEMARESRE WK —
E-FRBHRMAG ARTEREZER
& BB M AER B F St S Eim B B
I (AR ERE) -

BREITEERESET HETEER T
ZEMNESE: (NRE2EREBHAAR
A& B R FT RV ICTH(E ¢ (i) EEE IR 2 A #R0
FER S B AR R RN B R FTH E U
& RGiDRmHmEE-

PR M T 1A A MBI B SR A
g LERERER -
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As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 27.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year:

At 1 January n—HA—H
Forfeited 2 U
At 31 December Rt+t-_A=+—H

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

BRESE w
P HEIE TR EN BT -

2017

—E—tF
Exercise price Number
HK$ of options
per share ‘000
TREE BRERE
BRET Tt
2.00 16,250

2.00 16,250

REREHR MR TE BN TTEE RITE
HAON TS ¢

Number
of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE TEE" 1TEH
000 HK$ per share
Ft5 BT
4,875 2.0 24/2/2016-23/8/2019
—E-ARFAZTHEAE=_T-AFNA=F+Z=H
11,375 2.0 24/8/2017-23/8/2019
—EtFNAZTHBREZZE-AFNAHAZT=H
16,250
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment * TEHETT K - BITALRR 308 23 ] R 2K 1 57

in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in
the Company’s share capital.
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Bt 5 S R B

As at 31 December 2017 RZ-ZE—+#F+=-HA=+—H

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 27. BREFE w

No share options were granted during the year ended 31 REE_T—+F+_A=+T—HILFEH
December 2017 (2016: Nil), of which the Group recognised EREERE(ZE—RE &) HPERE
a share option expense of RMB195,000 (2016: RMB376,000) BREEz—FE—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

TR RS E R S AR ¥195,0000T (ZZF—X
£ ARME376,0007T) ©

during the year ended 31 December 2017.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was EREHNEEEEBRENRAEBELR
estimated as at the date of grant, using a binomial model, RO BEAMA—EARE GG BEREZE
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the 13 B RROME 0 R SR S MR 1 = TSR T P R AR
options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the EEESE PN

model used:

Share options

granted on
24 August 2015
R-Z—8%F
NA=+HWEA
KRR B E
Dividend yield (%) HX K (%) 5.86
Spot stock price (HK$ per share) \Hﬁﬁ (8RETT) 1.28
Historical volatility (%) J_EEW 12 (%) 41.49
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1 [ B2 1 2K (%) 0.96
Expected life of options (year) R ETRRT 8 (5F) 4.00
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) niEFHRE (FRET) 1.47
The expected life of the options is based on the historical data BREEAFHDOREBEBE=FNELH
over the past three years and is not necessarily indicative of BEE RUEERAIEDRNITERERN -
the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility T8 HA RZ 0 S R R 52K 0 AT R I R 2R AE B 1R
reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative ®HEERERIEEH-
of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.
At the end of the reporting period and at the date of approval RIEHARRNE MM BRRELEBR
of the consolidated financial statements, the Company had no ARG EEARE T BT A B ARAE -
share options exercised under the Scheme.
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had REEHIR - XA R H16,250,00017 R F &t
16,250,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme. The B ARTTEMNBRE EARFRITEAR
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under BT BBATER R AT A B ARG B B a
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue 716,250,000k AR BN E BAR & AR
of 16,250,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company 27,167,000 C8ESMNE A (FOBR TR AT) ©
and additional share capital of RMB27,167,000 (before issue
expenses).

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z = RAR A 7
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As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

28. TREASURY SHARES 28. EFRH
31 December 2017 31 December 2016
“E-tf+t-A=t+-H ZE-RFETZAZ+-H
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
REGEE &8 L ! Eixc
HK$'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
equivalent HK$'000 equivalent
TET AR%Tn Tar ARETR
(%6) (%6)
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(RER) (BE%Z) (8E%) (8E%)
At the beginning REA) - - - - - -
Repurchase of share capital BERA 19,400,000 22,160 19,508 - - -
At the end RER 19,400,000 22,160 19,508 - - -

On 26 August 2016, the Company adopted a share award
plan, which is not subject to the provisions of Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules (the “Share Award Plan”). The board of
directors may, at their discretion, grants shares of the Company
to eligible participants. The Company has appointed a trustee
for administration of the Share Award Plan (the “Trustee”). The
principal activity of the Trustee is administrating and holding
the Company’s shares for the Share Award Plan for the benefit
of the Company’s award holders. The Company’s shares will
be purchased by the Trustee in the market with cash paid by
the Company and held in the trust for relevant award holders
until such shares are vested in accordance with the provisions
of the Share Award Plan. Upon vesting, the Trustee shall either
transfer the vested awarded shares at no cost to such award
holders or sell the vested awarded shares at the then prevailing
market price by way of market order and remit the net proceeds
to the award holders in accordance with the direction given
by such award holders. The total number of the Company’s
shares purchased by the Trustee under the Share Award Plan
will not exceed 5% of the total issued shares of the Company
at the beginning of fiscal year. During the period ended 31
December 2017, the Trustee purchased 19,400,000 shares
of the Company at a total consideration of approximately
RMB19,508,000. At the end of the reporting period, no share
was granted under the Share Award Plan.

2017 Annual Report —ZE—t+tF &
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ARARBEZEEZFTA(ZTADEERRS
HEEE - XTANEZEF AL R FE
BB AR EBEEERER
KRG o ARE] 2D EAZFTART
B EERRRE N REBAL LTS
ARARAREREAMNES BEEFERN
RBERD EBEFTEEX FUARE AL - F
Big X ABRRBZEREE AELNIE
T~ BERBZREROREEETZREE
BEAN MSERTE ERERRTZTER
&S B 5B 2 RE IR M) M A% BT 1S SR IE SRR ME
HFEBFEA - REBRFEEV AR
B REDET BB AR AR B REET
FHBAAREEITRMEHEN% EHE
—T—+F+-A=+—HILHM ZFEA
LB AR E L AR 19,508,000 T AR A
19,400,000/% I 17 o 7 5k 45 HA R - BE B AR &
A% 0 B2 Eh T B 4% AR (7 ©
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Notes to Financial Statements

RESERVES

The changes in the reserves of the Group during the year have
been disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the Group.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between the
shareholders’ total capital contributions to Hong Kong
Kingdom over the nominal value of the shares issued
by the Company in exchange therefor as at the date of
a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) of the Group to
rationalise the group structure in preparation for the listing of
the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange. Details of the
Reorganisation are set out in the prospectus of the Company
dated 30 November 2006.

PRC statutory reserve

General reserve fund

The subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to transfer at
least 10% of their profit after taxation, as determined under the
PRC accounting regulations, to the general reserve fund until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of their respective registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before the
distribution of dividends to shareholders.

The general reserve fund can be used to make good losses
and convert into share capital by the issue of new shares to
shareholders in proportion to their existing equity holdings.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of overseas subsidiaries.

Share option reserve

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share
options issued under the Scheme are included in note 27 to the
financial statements.
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B 5 AR B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

29. RESERVES (continued) 29. im0
Share premium igrii |
The application of the share premium account is governed R G ERNERXFAERSARIEEE -
by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the RERSHESRTE  MEBEZRD RS
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the share BEIE AAFRIREMN B B EFBREPEE
premium account are distributable to the shareholders of the FHRES RIRMEERTHNESAI DR T
Company provided that immediately following the date on RRAFIRRER

which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

30. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 30, EHFRERERHE

CASH FLOWS
(@) Major non-cash transactions @ ETEIREXRS
There were no major non-cash transactions during the REMMBRFELTEFZIRER
current financial year. e
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing b BETBELECEGEEH
activities
2017 e
Interest-bearing
bank borrowings
FERITEE
RMB’000
AR¥EF T
At 1 January n—H—H 631,903
Changes from financing cash flows MERETREZEY (36,742)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 595,161
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Notes to Financial Statements

31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(@)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14
to the financial statements) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging
from two to five years. The terms of the leases generally
also require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the
then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

Less than one year —F R
In the second to fifth years E_ZERF

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+#+-H=+—H

31, &&

(@)

HEEE

EREHBEA
AEERBEEHELTHHEHRKRE
W (MBHRKRME14)  ZFHEK
EENFHNTMEEAF -HEFER
EMEK—RATARERP I NRES
RETAAREBEEROT AT HEES
tEHAAEE

RZE—+tF+-A=+—H &&
EREEBF RIS M-S A] BEE e
EEUTNFHANRKRERERK
FELEEE

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE-RF
+=B=+—H +—-_RA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETF T
660 529

600 254

1,260 783
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B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties
and warehouse properties under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for
terms ranging from three to six years, and those for office
equipment are for terms after two years.

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals were payable as

follows:

Less than one year —F RN

In the second to fifth years FE_EZFERF
After five years HF#&

The Group leases certain properties located in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and ltaly as the Group's offices. The
leases run for an initial period of three to six years.
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31, REFERE W
b)) EHEEEA
AEBRELCEHETHHEAESET
WMANEMERBEYE - ZEMEN
HELERNFEN T =ZF2 5
Mk AERENHERARMFRE -

THREEEHEHS N AT FHE

-
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
—=E—+F —E—RE
+=—A=+—H +=-A=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT T AREETFIT
2,192 1,919
3,291 1,592
660 840
6,143 4,351

AEEERBEARE FERBEANME
AETYRERAEENRAE 1]
BHEERA=ERF-



Notes to Financial Statements

32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments in respect of the purchase of items of

property, plant and equipment outstanding as at 31 December

2017 but not provided for in the financial statements were as

follows:

Contracted for BEI4

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@ Transactions with companies controlled by one of
the Company’s directors

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group leased offices and manufacturing facilities
located in Mainland China from Zhejiang Kingdom
Creative Co., Ltd. (“Kingdom Creative”) and
incurred operating lease charges of RMB490,000
(2016: RMB500,000). Mr. Ren Weiming has a
controlling equity interest in Kingdom Creative.
The lease expenses were made according to
published prices and conditions offered by the
lessor to its major customers.

B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

32, BEAREKIE
EHESYE BERRBEER -ZT—+
F+= A=+ — BRI BY RERER
KAFHEBENE R AENT

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
+=—A=+—H +=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR ARBEF T
36,283 77,930

33. BELTRS
(@ ERAQAF—BEZEFNQT
BETHNRS

(i)

REE_Z—tF+=-A=1—
AIEFE  AEE RIS EA
ERNERAT ([£EBIZE])
i LN TN = 07N
EREERE  TEEMEER
EB8H A AR®490,0007T (=
ZT—XF AR¥500,0000T) °
ML EHEE S ERENT
BER-AEBEATRERDLE
AREFZERFRHEMNE QM
B R IEHED -
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As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Transactions with companies controlled by one of
the Company’s directors (continued)

(@)

(b)

(ii)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group purchased electricity from Zhejiang Yuyuan
Solar Co., Ltd. with an amount of RMB2,433,000
(2016: RMBT1,285,000). Mr. Ren Weiming has
a controlling equity interest in this company.
The electricity purchase was made according to
published prices and conditions offered by the
supplier to its major customers.

Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group

Short term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

RHIE B &R
RER IR 1R A

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s
emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial
statements.

The related party transaction in respect of note (a)(ii)
above also constitute connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

2017 Annual Report —ZE—t+tF &

33. BEFRZ W
(@ EBEBRAQAT—BEEEZHHLTE
ETHRXS @
iy REE_Z—+HF+-_A=1+—
HIEFE AEBNUARE
2,433,0007T (ZF—RF: AR
#51,285,0007T ) AT 2R %
RERRARIIEE - (EHERRELTERE
B AR - BBE IR
BEREEERAEEZEFEMH
BB A ER RIGEHEL -

b) FEETEEBEAESNHE

2017 2016

S s
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFR  AR%TR
4,998 4,736

128 126

5,126 4,862

EENESTHRAEMENE — P
BENP B IRERMEES o

XX R @)D R REE S R 5 INME
KEERXS (TxR EmRANE+FT
AFE) °



34.

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2017

R-F—tF1+-_A=1+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34. RERSENERMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBREHRR TR ITANKESEN
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: e
2017 —E—+tF
Financial assets TRMEE
Loans and
receivables
= £793
FE W RIR
RMB’000
AR®T T
Trade and notes receivables EUE 5 R AR R & 310,215
Financial assets included in deposits and ST AR & B HoAh fE R IR B
other receivables SREE 56,568
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEHEY 173,824
Pledged deposits EHEMFR 50,314
590,921
Financial liabilities cREE
Financial
Financial liabilities
liabilities at fair value
at amortised  through profit
cost or loss Total
RE S A RAREE
5 BR #Y FFABREN
cRaE L= st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®T T ARBT T
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t S RI1TEE 595,161 - 595,161
Financial liabilities included in & A E & {5 FRIEHY
other payables TRARE 84,282 - 84,282
Derivative financial instruments $7T£ €T A - 7,002 7,002
Trade and notes payables BB SRR R R IR 152,677 - 152,677
832,120 7,002 839,122

Kingdom Holdings Limited $Z = RAER A 7
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B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

(continued)
2016

Financial assets

EWE ZRF N BB ERE
A S K H YR IE Y

Trade and notes receivables
Financial assets included in

deposits and other receivables SREE
Cash and cash equivalents ReLREEEDY
Derivative financial instruments #7744 T &
Pledged deposits SR HEES

Financial liabilities

Interest-bearing bank loans
Financial liabilities included in other payables
Trade and notes payables

172
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34. REHNSENEHIE @

FHERTTER

ENEZEARENRR

RIERR SENeMITAEMNEKRmeET
NREC:))
—E—RF
STREE
Financial
assets
at fair value
Loans and  through profit
receivables or loss Total
BREE
BER R FFABER
JE W R IR TREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEF T AREEFIT ARBEF T
297,964 - 297,964
38,161 - 38,161
279,511 - 279,511
- 5,788 5,788
74,355 - 74,355
689,991 5,788 695,779
Ea =L
Financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost
TR SH P AR
I HR HY
TRBE
RMB’000
ARBTT
631,903
FFAREMENRENCREE 42,418
129,489
803,810



35.

Notes to Financial Statements

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

TRIBENAREBERAIAEBES
EY
AEECRITANEERSBERAAEE (H
FHeREARBEAEREERIMN N
T

Carrying amounts Fair values
BRE & DREE
2017 2016 2017 2016

—E2-t& —TRF ZB-tF ZTXF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTEIT AR®TR ARBTL

Financial (liabilities)/assets tR(8E) E8E
Derivative financial instruments MESRITE (7,002) 5,788 (7,002) 5,788

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, trade and notes receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
pledged deposits, current interest-bearing bank loans, trade
and notes payables, an amount due to an associate, a dividend
payable, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely due
to the short term maturities of these instruments. The carrying
amount of the non-current interest-bearing bank loans of the
Group approximates to their fair value because the loans have
a floating interest rate.

HERENTE R LREFEY BK
B oA NEKEE STABNK AR
Ht YRR BB E - M T B
HIGt BRITER BNESRANENRE
B BN RRRE  BARE FTA
Hip e RIB R FRIRE AN RA BN QR
EEEERASEES TERHRZET
EE AR BT S - N B FERV G B IR
TTERBRRFBNERGE  HERESR
HENEERE
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B 5 AR B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

35.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the chief
financial officer and the audit committee. At each reporting
date, the finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation process
and results are discussed with the audit committee twice a year
for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
various counterparties, principally financial institutions with
AAA credit ratings. Derivative financial instruments, including
forward currency contracts and cross-currency swap, are
measured using valuation techniques similar to forward pricing
and swap models, using present value calculations. The models
incorporate various market observable inputs including the
credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and
forward rates and interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of
forward currency contracts are the same as their fair values.

As at 31 December 2017, the market value of the derivative
asset position is net of a credit valuation adjustment attributable
to derivative counterparty default risk. The changes in
counterparty credit risk had no material effect on the financial
instruments recognised at fair value.
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BEBH BB MemIEANBEED
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Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+#+-H=+—H

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 35. ERMITANAABERAAEES
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) AR ()
Fair value hierarchy PARBESREE
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRETAEESRIANAABEIES
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: ARIRHE
Assets measured at fair value: RARBENENEE:
Fair value measurement using
RAUTHEETHAABEE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
31 December markets inputs inputs
2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
“E-tF  REBRHE EATEE EXTUER
+=A H&RE BWAE BAE
=+-H £ EZE $£=E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Financial liabilities at fair value through R AR EEF ABZEA

profit or loss - foreign exchange TRARE

forward contracts —NEEHAEH
Financial liabilities at fair value through ~ RAAEBEF ABZEA

profit or loss - cross-currency swap TRER

—BER TS

ARETR ARBTR ARETR AR®T=R

(555) - (555) -

(6,447) - (6,447) -

(7,002) - (7,002) -

Kingdom Holdings Limited $Z = RAER A 7
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B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 3. TRITEMNARBERAABESE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) HERE
Fair value hierarchy (continued) PABESRREE @

Fair value measurement using
KRAATHEBETHOABENE
Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

31 December markets inputs inputs
2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
—E-RE RNERWE  BEAUER EATIUEER
+=A KR (E BAE BAE
=+—H £—E -y F=E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREBTT ARBETT AREBTR

Financial assets at fair value through RAABE ABREN

profit or loss - foreign exchange tREE

forward contracts —INEERME L 5,788 - 5,788 -

5,788 - 5,788 -

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there were no REBE_T—tF+-_A=+—RHILFE"
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, AREBEFEEE—EAE_EBzRAMES
and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value BonEEAE-ERAFE-_EEL-
measurements.
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36.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial liabilities, other than
derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank loans, trade
and notes payables, a dividend payable, an amount due
to an associate and other payables. The main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various financial assets such as
trade and notes receivables, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents
that arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to
manage the currency risks arising from the Group’s operations
and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks which are summarised below.
The Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives are
set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
loans with floating interest rates. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk.

36.
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As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

MEEEEEEEREE

AEENETZERMAE (TTETARKRIMNE
BRARRTER BNEZRALENRE
B ENRE BN —RHEBEQRFERE
ENKE ZEeRABEIEENEAN
SERHERZXBIFE S ARBHEZ
BREANEHMEE NEKE SRR KZEK
S8 BN B REAMEKFOR - 2R
FRARREMREFEY DEERLE
EmEL -

AEETETITETARS  TEBREERED
EHAK BEEEEASELERARENR
RELHNE R -

RNREFENSBITEAELHTERR AFIRE
% INERR - FERBEREBTERR - EF
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) 2= & Bz
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B 5 AR B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax for the year (through
the impact on the floating rate borrowings). The change in the
interest rates has no impact on the Group’s equity excluding
retained profits.

2017 —E—+F
RMB AREE
RMB AR
2016 —E—RF
RMB AREE
RMB AR

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group has foreign
currency sales and purchases and certain trade receivables,
payables and bank balances that are denominated in USS$,
EUR and HK$, which are currencies other than the functional
currencies of the Group, and expose the Group to foreign
currency risk.
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36. AR EEEEREER @

F = E kR ()
TRETENMBEMEHT ST  AEEF
AR ADGS M R RSB A RE B B HBRE
(BB FEFEREENTE) - FIXESFHY
AEBENEZ (REB BRI LEmEE-

Increase/
(decrease) in
profit before tax

Increase/
(decrease) in
interest rate

Fl = RR B A% R
ER(FR) i GR)
RMB’000

AR®BT T

(1%) 177

1% 177)

(1%) 161
1% (161)

S LB

SRR BRSNS ERZEBMEN ST A
MAREBEIRRRESRERBNERE - K
SENIINEEE ETRKRE SRR BN
PR M IRTTAE R JEAR R B M RE B S
B8 MAET BT RETINE  EAKER
LN e o
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Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The Group manages its foreign currency risk by entering into
foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its exposure
to fluctuations on the translation into RMB of its foreign
operations of sales in US$ and EUR, as described in note 21. It
is the Group’s policy to ensure that the net exposure is kept to
an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at
a fixed rate where necessary to address short term imbalances.
Management will continue to monitor foreign exchange
exposure and will continue to consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure by using financial instruments such
as foreign currency forward contracts.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in the US$, EUR and HK$ exchange rates, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities including foreign currency derivatives). The change
in foreign currency exchange rate has no impact on the equity
excluding retained profits.

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE=-Z2—+tH&

T-A=t—-HLEE

36.

If RMB weakens against US$ AR R ETHESS
If RMB strengthens against US$ MAR¥ERETER

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2017 RZ-ZE—+#F+=-HA=+—H
BERREEEEZEREE m

SN ELER ()

NI FE2 1Pl - NE BB BE] L IMER BT A
AV H S E N ETE LA TE T M BT HI{E H
EHEAARBEFSNER #MERE
INERR REBNBRANETEHES
RETERE A E HIMNEfR RS AR

AR B S BEAR BT 0 AT K - BIE [
1M E B SNE BB - SWAEEE BB BE A
TR TR (MINSERE L) HmEARINE
[z o

TRETEMAHMEHIEE  NEBER
BANRMEET BT RAETTEERSIE A 6
BENHRE (HREEEERAE (B
INBPTHET R)MAREEES) - INEER
YD (RERVRINITELE -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax

ShEEE = FR B4 A 2

EFH (T #h R

% RMB’000

AR®TR

5 11,237
5) (11,237)
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B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2016

If RMB weakens against US$
If RMB strengthens against US$

Year ended 31 December 2017

If RMB weakens against EUR
If RMB strengthens against EUR

180

2017 Annual Report —ZE—t+tF &

36. AR EEEEREER @

M R B (s

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in (decrease)

foreign currency in profit

rate before tax

HNHEE PR B 750 A1 g

EACRB) S CRd)

% RMB’000

ARBEF T

HEZZT—XF
+TZA=+T—HLFE

MARME R ETES 5 9,413
IMARE R IE TS (5) (9,413)
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in (decrease)

foreign currency in profit

rate before tax

ShEEE = FR B4 A 28

FH(CFE) & CRD)

% RMB’000

AR® TR

BE-Z—tHF
+ZRA=+—HLEE

AR BOTESS 5 5,659
AR LB TR 5) (5,659)
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B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. MIEEAKREEBERBER @
AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued) S LB (a0
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax

NS BE & BR 5% A1t 7
EACFE) i Oid)

% RMB’000
ARBTT
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE_ZT—XRF
+TZA=+T—HLFE
If RMB weakens against EUR A REE H BT 53 5 (4,885)
If RMB strengthens against EUR MAREE S B TER (5) 4,885
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax
ShEEE = FR B4 A 28
FH(CFE) & CRD)
% RMB’000
AR® TR
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-=2—tF
+ZRA=+—HLEE
If RMB weakens against HK$ AR B THESS 5 1,022
If RMB strengthens against HK$ AR B TER (5) (1,022)
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As at 31 December 2017 RZ-ZE—+F+=-A=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE-_T—RF
TZA=+—HILFE
If RMB weakens against HK$ MARYE H B TESS
If RMB strengthens against HK$ WMARBHETER

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to trade and notes receivables and deposits and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to credit risk are monitored on an ongoing basis.
Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount.

Customer credit risk is managed by the Group’s established
policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Credit quality of customers is assessed through
credit verification procedures.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, and pledged deposits,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.
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36.

MEEEEEEEREER @

SR BE ()
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax

NS BE & BR 5% A1t 7
EACFE) i Oid)

% RMB’000

ARBFT
5 (1,814)
(5) 1,814

FERR
EERBRVERHFIHRERTENEH
TAHEEPA ’JIETE’JTEF@%@IHM&TE%
MER ARENEERRTIERERKE
2 B R W R AB DA B 3 & e EL At FE UK
H-BEEECDHFEERRE I?%ZEEQ 15
SR AREHBREESRETLHEN
FrBEFPHEITEER G-

EPEERREASEEEEFEERRE
ERRERER BFRERETER - TP
MEEEREBERZERFETIE

AEBEHEMEREE (BRASIREEHE
Y ERREF)EEFHEOMELENR
SEERBEENZETANEESMAE-
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As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. BEMEEEREREE @
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERE @
Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy HRAEEERERTAEEERINE=H
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. HEITRG ALBAKRERR - FEEF
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/ RBRIEER /HFFEER - ARKEEE
counterparty. There are no significant concentrations of credit WE GERANEFEREZ DB AEE
risk within the Group as the customer bases of the Group’s WESREEEFER -
trade receivables are widely dispersed.
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure BEAREERERKE FHEAKLERFEEDN
to credit risk arising from trade and notes receivables are EERBNE - TR HBERY B REM T
disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements. 19858
Liquidity risk T B 14 LB
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the T RAEBRBERARN SR AEDHB
end of the reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted R (REHARFTBEMAF)
payments, was as follows:
As at 31 December 2017
R=Z-+t#+=A=+-8
Less than 3to12 Tto5 More than
On demand 3 months months years 5 years Total
RERX SRR ZE+=fA -Z5f SREE @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TRT ARBTRT ARMTR ARETR AR%T:R
Interest-bearing bank loans STRBRTER - 140,324 386,535 81,904 - 608,763
Trade and notes payables ENESEIRENRE 115,400 62,361 12,022 - - 189,783
Other payables and accruals HENHERERER 84,232 - - - 84,232
199,632 202,685 398,557 81,904 - 882,778
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As at 31 December 2017

36.

R-F—tF+=-A=1+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. MEAMEEBRRBE @
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) TE MR ()
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the T RAEBERBERARN SR A EDHB
end of the reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted N ORBKARFTRNFT) (@) :
payments, was as follows (continued):
As at 31 December 2016
RZB-—R"F+-A=+-H
Less than 3t012 Ttob More than
On demand 3 months months years 5 years Total
B2k ORZER ZE+ZfEA —Z0F SREF @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  AR®TR ARBTT ARETT ARETR AR%TxR
Interest-bearing bank loans STRBRTER - 59,466 480,506 111,360 - 651,332
Trade and notes payables ENESEFRENRE 19,813 108,644 1,032 - - 129,489
Other payables and accruals HENHERERER 4,418 - - - - 42,418
62,231 168,110 481,538 111,360 - 823,239
Capital management EXERE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustment
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the Group’s objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36.

AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank loans, trade and notes payables, an
amount due to an associate and other payables and accruals,
less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes equity
attributable to the owners of the parent. The gearing ratios as at
the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

HEEBEEEEREE @

BEARERE @)
AEBFHEELXREEER ABELER
EABSFERUENEEINES FRE - E
HFEBENBRITER BNESERIX
R ZEIE  EA — B2 A F IR A R EAD
ENFIERTERER  BERE MRS E
Yo BEARABIEG NG A AEGERZ R
EHRMEBERERDNT .

Interest-bearing bank loans
Trade and notes payables
Other payables and accruals (note 24)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt
Total equity

Capital and net debt

Gearing ratio

HEIRITER

JERTE SRR A IR

Hipfet B LIBIRE A
(K7at24)

BoEEeRREEEY

BARERFER
BELE

31 December

31 December

2017 2016
—g—tf —BAE
t=g=+-8 +t=A=+-H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTT
595,161 631,903
189,783 129,489
87,384 45,126
(173,824) (279,511)
698,504 527,007
1,050,196 1,086,436
1,748,700 1,613,443
40% 33%
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As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

37.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 25 January 2018, Kingdom (Ethiopia), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the master
agreement with the IT Electronics Eleventh Design & Research
Institute Scientific and Technological Engineering Corporation
Limited (“EDRI”), pursuant to which EDRI conditionally agreed
to provide the procurement service and the management
service to Kingdom (Ethiopia) for the development of the
line yarn project in Ethiopia at an aggregate contract price of
RMB208,670,000.

On the same date on 25 January 2018, Kingdom (Ethiopia)
entered into the procurement contract and the project
management contract in relation to the procurement service
and the management service, respectively.

On 23 March 2018, the board of directors of the Company
proposed a final dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share
totalling approximately RMB10,527,000 for the year ended
31 December 2017, which is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (note 11).
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37. REPREER

R-ZZE—N\F—A-+HB AQaHEES
& A FlKingdom (Ethiopia) {5 EEXE
FET R ARREHE TR ERAQF
([EB+—&ariA7Ebe ] ) AT £ 1k - IR UL -
BT —RET R A B R E AKingdom
(Ethiopia) IR IR RS R B 1 R 7%+ DA
FEMREERTENENBREAARY
208,670,0007CHIZEfif 4V B B ©

RZZE—-—NF—A=Z+HARHA " Kingdom
(Ethiopia) 7> B!l A BR B AR 765 B2 %5 38 AR 7% 5T 2 K%
BEAORIBEBEEAH -
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Amount due to subsidiaries
Payroll payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Net assets

EQUITY
Issued capital
Reserves

Total equity

FRBEE
RETBERRNERE

FRBEERE
MEEE
& W Pl 188 2 B R IR

H USRI
RekReEED

MEEERE
MEAR
FRIRTTEE

JEASS B /BB 2 IR IR
R # e

mEBERRE

MEEEFE

BERERRBAE

38.

As at 31 December 2017

R-F—tF1+-_A=1+—H

Q)M EARR T
BEARRRNREBROT B AR E R
L
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
+=—A=+—H +=-A=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fx AREFIT
373,362 373,167
373,362 373,167
283,159 315,335
1,473 1,789
1,085 5,074
285,717 322,198
26,331 41,148
4,746 4,708
442 -
31,519 45,856
254,198 276,342
627,560 649,509
627,560 649,509
6,329 6,329
621,231 643,180
627,560 649,509
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As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+#+-H=+—H

38.

39.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. RATMBMRRAEK @0

COMPANY (continued)

Note: Hfat -

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARRBFEERRAT

(@  Company () VNN

Share
Share  Contributed Treasury option Retained

premium surplus shares reserve profits Total

K@ BARE EERG BRERE RERF EH

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREBTT ARMTRT AR%ETR ARBTR ARETT ARETR

At 1 January 2016 RZZ-"E-A-H 271,389 370,213 - 1,636 418 643,656

Profit for the year FRREA - - - - 41,815 41,815

Final 2015 dividend declared  BER-Z—HERHKE (434) - - - (42,233) (42,667)

Repurchase of share capital BB - - - - - -
Equity-settled share option ~ bAER & B R EZ 5

arrangements - - - 376 - 376

At31 December 2016and ~ RZE—"FTZA=1—H

1 January 2017 RZF—t5-F—-H 270,955 370,213 - 2,012 - 643,180

Profit for the year FRREF - - - - 25,526 25,526

Final 2016 dividend declared  2ER=F—AERHARE (2,636) - - - (25,526) (28,162)

Repurchase of share capital B - - (19,508) - - (19,508)
Equity-settled share option ~ LAER & B BERERH

arrangements - - - 195 - 195

At 31 December 2017 RZB—+FE+ZA=1+—-H 268,319 370,213 (19,508) 2,207 - 621,231

Contributed surplus AR

Contributed surplus represents the excess of the fair value of the MABBIENEA RS ESERMNAALEBE

shares of Hong Kong Kingdom at the date of the Reorganisation over HB NN T 8 AT A T B 1T R0 T (e ) BE o

the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company in exchange

therefor.

* Profit for the year of 2017 includes dividends from subsidiaries * T E— L E Y FI 1 HE R B B A A E
attributable to previous years’ profits of RMB27,122,000 (2016: 1B E R FIBI R E A 127,122,000
RMB45,375,000) T (= FE—NAF AR #45,375,0005T)

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 39, #t&4 ftBt =

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 March
2018.
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